
1

Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu)

To: Cllr David Wisinger (Chairman)

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Chris Bithell, 
Derek Butler, David Cox, Ian Dunbar, Carol Ellis, 
David Evans, Alison Halford, Ray Hughes, 
Christine Jones, Richard Jones, Richard Lloyd, 
Mike Lowe, Nancy Matthews, Billy Mullin, 
Mike Peers, Neville Phillips, Gareth Roberts, 
David Roney and Owen Thomas

CS/NG

13 April 2016

Tracy Waters 01352 702331
tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE will be 
held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on 
WEDNESDAY, 20TH APRIL, 2016 at 1.00 PM to consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager

WEBCASTING NOTICE

This meeting will be filmed for live broadcast on the Council’s website.  
The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are 
confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on the website for 
6 months.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However, by 
entering the Chamber you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting 
and / or training purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact a member of 
the Democratic Services  Team on 01352 702345

Public Document Pack



2

A G E N D A

1 APOLOGIES 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3 LATE OBSERVATIONS 

4 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 38)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23rd March 
2016 (copy enclosed). 

5 ITEMS TO BE DEFERRED 

6 REPORTS OF CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT) 
The report of the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) is enclosed.  



3

REPORT OF CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT)
TO PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE ON 

20TH APRIL 2016
Item 
No

File Reference DESCRIPTION

Applications reported for determination (A=reported for approval, R=reported for refusal)
6.1  054607 054607 - A - Full Application - Erection of 33 No. Apartments with 

Associated Car Parking at Albion Social Club, Pen y Llan, Connah's Quay 
(Pages 39 - 50)

6.2  054886 054886 - A - Change of Use of Vacant Police House (Formerly a Dwelling) 
into a 9 Bedroom HMO and Associated Access Improvements at 63 High 
Street, Saltney (Pages 51 - 58)

6.3  053662 053662 - A - Full Application - Erection of 14 No. Semi-Detached Houses, 
2 No. Semi-Detached Bungalows, 6 Terraced Properties and 1 No. 
Special Needs Bungalow Together with Access Road and Parking at Land 
Off Coed Onn Road, Flint. (Pages 59 - 72)

6.4  054266 054266 - A - Full Application - Erection of Joinery Workshop at Joinery 
Yard, Valley Road, Ffrith (Pages 73 - 80)

6.5  054899 054899 - A - Full Application - Erection of 1 No. Detached Dwelling and a 
Detached Double Garage at 37 Wood Lane, Hawarden. (Pages 81 - 92)

6.6  055021 055021 - A - Full Application - Development of External Infrastructure 
Comprising Air Supply Units, Duct Work, Stacks & Supporting Steel Work 
& Associated Roadways & Landscaping to Support the Operation of 2 No. 
Booths within the Paint Shop Building at Chester Road, Broughton (Pages 
93 - 100)

6.7  054536 054536 - General Matters - Application for the Variation of Condition No. 
10 (Extension to Working Hours) & Condition No. 26 (Increase Height of 
Stockpiles) Attached to Planning Permission 052359 at Flintshire Waste 
Management, Ewloe Barns Industrial Estate, Mold Road, Ewloe. (Pages 
101 - 104)



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
23 MARCH 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Planning and Development Control Committee 
of the Flintshire County Council held at County Hall, Mold on Wednesday, 23 
March 2016

PRESENT: Councillor David Wisinger (Chairman) 
Councillors: Marion Bateman, Chris Bithell, Derek Butler, David Cox, Ian 
Dunbar, Carol Ellis, Alison Halford, Ray Hughes, Richard Jones, Richard 
Lloyd, Mike Lowe, Nancy Matthews, Mike Peers, Neville Phillips, Gareth 
Roberts, David Roney and Owen Thomas 

SUBSTITUTION: 
Councillor: Ron Hampson for Christine Jones

ALSO PRESENT: 
The following Councillors attended as local Members:-
Councillor Bernie Attridge for agenda item 6.7.  Councillor Rita Johnson for 
agenda item 6.8.  Councillor Tim Newhouse for agenda item 6.9.  Councillor 
Chris Dolphin for agenda item 6.12.  Councillor Rita Johnson as adjoining 
ward Member for agenda item 6.13.  
The following Councillors attended as observers:
Councillor Haydn Bateman 

APOLOGY:
Councillor Billy Mullin

IN ATTENDANCE: 
Chief Officer (Planning and Environment), Development Manager, Planning 
Strategy Manager, Senior Engineer - Highways Development Control, Team 
Leader, Senior Planners, Senior Minerals and Waste Officer, Planning 
Support Officer, Housing & Planning Solicitor and Committee Officer

145. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Nancy Matthews indicated that she had sought legal advice 
and as it could have been deemed that she had pre-determined her stance on 
the following application, she would speak as Local Member only and not as a 
Committee Member and would therefore not vote on the application:-

 
Agenda item 6.4 – Full application – Change of use of land from 
paddock to a touring caravan facility (24 touring caravans) and 
erection of amenity block at Ty Hir, Ffordd Glyndwr, Nercwys 
(054629)

146. LATE OBSERVATIONS

The Chairman allowed Members an opportunity to read the late 
observations which had been circulated at the meeting.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



147. MINUTES

The draft minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 24th 
February 2016 had been circulated to Members with the agenda.

Councillor Chris Bithell referred to page 29 and asked that the words 
‘fencing and’ be added to the ninth line of the second paragraph before the 
words ‘an additional camera’.  On being put to the vote, the amendment was 
agreed.

Councillor Mike Peers also referred to page 29 and suggested that the 
words ‘the agent for Aldi’ be added after the words ‘Ms. Gabrilatsou’ in the 
seventh line of the final paragraph.  On being put to the vote, the amendment 
was agreed.

In referring to page 33, Councillor Peers asked if the letter seeking a 
community benefit in connection with the development on Spencer Industrial 
Estate had been sent.  The Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) 
confirmed that it had been sent and added that discussions on an appropriate 
scheme would be held with the Local Member.  

RESOLVED:

That subject to the suggested amendments, the minutes be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

148. ITEMS TO BE DEFERRED

The Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) advised that deferment 
of the following application was recommended:

Agenda item 6.7 - Full application – Erection of 33 No. apartments 
with associated car parking at Albion Social Club, Pen y Llan, 
Connah’s Quay (054607) – Deferred due to concerns raised at the site 
visit about access to the site and waste collections.  Deferment was 
proposed by Councillor Gareth Roberts and was duly seconded.  

On being put to the vote, the application was deferred.  

RESOLVED:

That application 054607 (Albion Social Club, Pen y Llan, Connah’s Quay) be 
deferred.

149. APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF CONDITION NOS 2, 14 & 18 
FOLLOWING GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION: 042468 AT PARRY’S 
QUARRY, PINFOLD LANE, ALLTAMI (054135)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application.  The usual consultations had been 

Page 6



undertaken and the responses received detailed in the report.  Additional 
comments received since the preparation of the report were circulated at the 
meeting.  

The Senior Minerals and Waste Officer detailed the background to the 
report and explained that the application had been deferred from the previous 
meeting to allow clarification on the conditions to be provided.  She explained 
that the proposal was for a Section 73 application to vary conditions 2, 14 and 
18 which she detailed.  Appendix 1 to the report provided details of the 
original wording, the proposed wording and the reason for the changes and 
the proposed changes were broadly grouped as detailed in paragraph 1.02 of 
the report.  Condition 32 had been added to secure a traffic management 
plan.  The officer referred Members to the late observations where comments 
from Councillor Richard Jones were reported which included a request for an 
amendment to condition 4, clarification on the use of a tail piece and seeking 
clarification on the differences between conditions; officer responses had 
been provided.  The recommendation was for approval of planning permission 
and the officer indicated that there had been no objections from statutory 
consultees.  

Mr. S. Amos spoke in support of the application.  He said that transport 
consultants had been employed by the applicant and they had reviewed 
personal injury traffic accident data which demonstrated that no accidents had 
been recorded on the A494/Pinfold Lane junction over the past 10 years.  It 
was therefore felt that there were no road safety issues that required the 
provision of any road widening scheme but a scheme had been proposed by 
the applicant which it was felt would be a significant improvement to the ability 
of two vehicles to pass.  There were no outstanding objections nor conflict 
with planning policy and therefore Mr. Amos asked the Committee to approve 
the application.    

Councillor Chris Bithell proposed the recommendation for approval 
which was duly seconded. 

The Local Member, Councillor Carol Ellis, said that most of her 
concerns had been discussed at the previous meeting but she still had 
concerns about condition 12 relating to an approved dust scheme and 
condition 15 about the prevention of mud, dust, debris and litter onto the 
public highway.  She sought clarification that all of the schemes would be in 
place before any waste was brought to the site and said that there were no 
details in the report about the control of odour from the site which she also felt 
was a concern.  

At the previous meeting, Councillor Owen Thomas has referred to the 
ditch being concreted over to allow the development of the access to the site; 
he queried whether the ditch would be reinstated.  Councillor Richard Jones 
thanked the officer for the responses provided in the late observations and the 
descriptions in the appendix of why the conditions were to change.  In relation 
to condition 4, Councillor Mike Peers suggested that the Local Member and 
adjoining Ward Member be advised when the detailed work programme had 

Page 7



been submitted.  He also sought assurance that no waste would be received 
on the site prior to the submission of all necessary schemes.  

In response to the comments made, the officer confirmed that the 
schemes referred to in conditions 12 and 15 had already been approved and 
added that the operator was obliged to comply with these schemes as 
approved.  On the issue of odour, the officer confirmed that the applicant 
would need to submit a scheme before waste could be received at the site 
and confirmed that no waste would be received at the site before the working 
programme was submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  
The officer confirmed that discussions about the detailed working programme 
(as referred to in condition 4) could be held with the Local Member.  She 
added that Highways had felt the work on the culverting of the ditch by the 
access to the site was acceptable.  The Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) drew Members’ attention to condition 31 on the implementation 
of an approved liaison committee scheme, which he felt would allow an 
opportunity for Members and residents to engage with the applicant on any 
areas of concern.  The Senior Minerals and Waste Officer confirmed that an 
initial meeting had taken place and that there would be more meetings in the 
future.  She added that consultation could be undertaken with the Local 
Member and the adjoining Ward Member, as requested.  

In summing up, Councillor Bithell said that all issues and concerns that 
had been raised had been addressed.     

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the 
report of the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) and subject to the 
completion of a supplementary Section 106 (S106) agreement to attach the 
obligations contained in the S106 agreement dated 16 December 2008 in 
relation to planning permission 042468 to the permission arising out of this 
application.  

150. FULL APPLICATION – ERECTION OF WASTE TRANSFER BUILDING, 
WEIGHBRIDGE, WEIGHBRIDGE OFFICE, ACCESS ROAD AND 
ANCILLARY DEVELOPMENT AT PARRY’S QUARRY, PINFOLD LANE, 
ALLTAMI (054201)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application.  The usual consultations had been 
undertaken and the responses received detailed in the report.

The Senior Minerals and Waste Officer detailed the background to the 
report.  She explained that the applicant was in the process of implementing 
the planning permission granted for the site and this application was for the 
erection of a waste transfer building which would reduce the impact on the 
amenity for issues such as noise.  She provided details of the size and height 
of the building which had been revised and compared the building with a 
nearby telecommunications mast which was 23.5 metres high.  Concerns had 

Page 8



been raised about the height of the building but the officer stated that the 
nearest residential properties were 140 metres away and the distance was 
considered to be too large for the transfer building to be overbearing on these 
properties.  The views from Liverpool Road and Smithy Lane, which were 
between 700 and 1,000 metres away, would be more distant and would only 
be of the top of the building.  The provision of the building would reduce the 
impact of the site on the area and would therefore be an overall planning gain.  
The officer added that the applicant could operate without the transfer building 
but its provision would allow them more control.     

Mr. S. Amos, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.  It was 
felt that the facility would improve the efficiency of the site and the reduction in 
vehicles accessing the waste tipping area would reduce the potential 
disturbance in terms of dust and noise that may otherwise occur.  All of the 
delivery vehicles would use the new HGV access and there had been no 
objections from statutory consultees and the application was compliant with 
planning policy.    

Councillor Chris Bithell proposed the recommendation for approval 
which was duly seconded.  He felt that the proposal would be an improvement 
and would reduce some of the problems that could otherwise have occurred 
and would be a planning gain.  The height of the building was a concern but 
other buildings and structures in the area were more prominent.  The site 
would be used for industrial purposes and screening was already in place and 
therefore there would not be an impact on the neighbouring residents.  
Councillor Ian Dunbar sought clarification on the distance of the building from 
the nearest residents.  

The Local Member, Councillor Carol Ellis, noted the conditions but said 
that she still had a number of concerns relating to the visual impact from 
Liverpool Road and Smithy Lane.  On the issue of noise control, she asked 
that all schemes be submitted to the Council before any work commenced on 
site.  She hoped that the compliance with conditions would not need to be 
undertaken by herself, the adjoining Ward Member or members of the public 
as she felt it was the Council’s responsibility to ensure that the conditions 
were all complied with.  

Councillor Richard Jones sought clarification on how many waste 
transfer stations there were in Buckley and sought assurance that any litter 
from the site would be cleaned up.  Councillor Mike Peers said that a lot of 
time was spent consulting on drawing up conditions which were agreed by all 
parties but then applicants submitted applications to change them.  He felt 
that the conditions should be imposed and asked whether it was possible to 
condition that the agreed conditions were not the result of an application to 
amend them at a future date.      

In response to the questions raised by Members, the Senior Minerals 
and Waste Officer said that the nearest properties were 140 metres away 
from the building.  The views from Liverpool Road and Smithy Lane would 
only be of the top of the building because of the mature vegetation that was in 

Page 9



place and a condition had also been included restricting the colour of the 
building to holly green.  A scheme for noise control was already in place for 
the whole of the site and on the issue of compliance with conditions, the 
officer advised that the Local Planning Authority would actively monitor the 
site up to eight times a year to ensure compliance with conditions at that time.  
She added that outside of those visits, there was a reliance on the public to let 
the Council know if they were aware of any breaches to what was permitted.  
However, she explained that the site was opposite the Council depot at 
Alltami and therefore officers could raise any concerns they had.  The officer 
indicated that she would check how many permitted sites there were in 
Buckley.  She explained that the purpose of the proposal was to reduce the 
impact on the amenity and on residents and would minimise the number of 
vehicle movements and would therefore be a vast improvement.  She noted 
the concerns raised by Councillor Peers about conditions imposed on 
permissions and concurred that Members and officers worked hard to draw up 
conditions that would provide control for the Council.  

The Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) said that there were a 
number of ways to ensure the conditions were monitored and enforced and 
these included the Minerals & Waste Team, the Liaison Committee and 
Natural Resources Waste as they needed to be satisfied that the site was run 
appropriately before they issued a permit.  However, he agreed with the 
Senior Minerals & Waste Officer that there was also a reliance on the public 
and Members to raise any issues with the Council.  He added that the 
conditions included in the permission of the application met the test and were 
definitive and enforceable.  Councillor Richard Jones felt that Members and 
the public should not be relied upon to check on the compliance with 
conditions and said that it should be the Enforcement Team with Members 
being an extra form of communication if necessary.  

In summing up, Councillor Bithell felt that all the issues raised had been 
addressed but spoke of the expectation that planning conditions would be 
adhered to.  However, if they were not, then the public could raise concerns 
with Members who could refer the matter to the Enforcement Team.  

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the 
report of the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment).

151. APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF A CONDITION 4 (TO INCREASE 
TONNAGE CAPACITY), CONDITION 10 (EXTENSION TO WORKING 
HOURS) AND CONDITION NO. 26 (INCREASE HEIGHT OF STOCKPILES) 
FOLLOWING GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION (052359) AT 
FLINTSHIRE WASTE MANAGEMENT, EWLOE BARNS INDUSTRIAL 
ESTATE, MOLD ROAD, EWLOE (054536)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application.  The usual consultations had been 
undertaken and the responses received detailed in the report.

Page 10



The Senior Minerals and Waste Officer detailed the background to the 
report and explained that this was a Section 73 application to vary three 
conditions (4, 10 and 26) attached to planning permission 052359 which had 
been approved in October 2015.  Since the application had been submitted, 
the applicant had withdrawn the request to vary conditions 4 and 26 and 
therefore only variation to condition 10 remained.  The applicant had asked for 
a temporary permission of six months to allow the impact of the requested 
changes to be assessed.  The original submission had requested working 
hours of 7am to 6pm Monday to Saturday with no Sunday working and the 
variation of condition was seeking working hours of 6am to 7pm Monday to 
Saturday and 10am to 5pm on a Sunday.  The officer explained that concerns 
had been expressed by Buckley Town Council and neighbouring residents 
about the impact on the amenity.  A noise assessment had been submitted 
with the application and had included spot noise assessments at Parry’s 
Cottages, Liverpool Road and Smithy Lane and these had been found to 
show that the noise associated with the workings would not exceed 
background levels.  It was felt that the proposals would not have a detrimental 
impact on the amenity.  A condition had been included to limit the noise levels 
which would be monitored and enforced by the Planning Authority and the 
officer suggested that the condition attached to the original permission also be 
carried forward to this proposal if approved.  

In response to a question from Councillor Chris Bithell about the 
request for temporary permission, the officer confirmed that the working hours 
would revert back to those currently permitted at the end of the temporary 
period and a further application would need to be submitted to vary the 
condition on a permanent basis. 

Councillor Bithell proposed the recommendation for approval which 
was duly seconded.  He felt that a temporary permission of six months was 
appropriate to assess any impacts and that a request for a permanent change 
could be refused if necessary.  

The Local Member, Councillor Carol Ellis, expressed significant 
concern that the public needed to advise the Council of any issues with the 
site and suggested that the applicant was not complying with the current 
working hours imposed.  She said that there had been a number of complaints 
about the site relating to the height of the stockpiles which she felt was a fire 
hazard.  She added that the site had previously accepted food waste from the 
Council for which they did not have a permit or planning permission and she 
said that this was a health hazard and had been reported by the public.  
Councillor Ellis had also raised the issue of receiving food waste by letter to 
the Council but had not yet received a response.  She said that she could not 
approve the application and that the applicant was not adhering to the current 
conditions which meant that the public were not being protected.  

Councillor Mike Peers felt that the views of the Local Member should 
be considered and concurred that the application should not be approved.  He 
queried the justification to vary the condition for six months and spoke of the 
noise that neighbouring residents would experience if the working hours 

Page 11



commenced at 6am and that consideration should be given as to where the 
traffic would be coming from to arrive at the site from 6am.  Councillor Peers 
felt that the current conditions should be adhered to and that a valid reason 
was required for why a 6am start was necessary along with working hours on 
a Sunday which were not currently in place.  He felt that any benefit to the 
applicant would be outweighed by the impact on the residents and queried 
why a Traffic Impact Assessment had not taken place.  Councillor Alison 
Halford agreed with Councillor Ellis and said that she would not support the 
proposal.  Councillor Richard Lloyd indicated that it was reported that Sunday 
working would be to carry out repairs, maintenance and testing on the site and 
queried why this could not be undertaken during the working hours on 
Monday to Saturday.  Councillor Gareth Roberts commented on the views of 
Councillor Ellis and suggested that if permission was granted for six months, 
then the applicant would comply with conditions for that period so that a 
request for permanent variation would be considered favourably.  He felt that 
refusing the application was justified.  Councillor Marion Bateman said that 
assurance had been given that any breaches of condition would be looked at 
when reported to the Planning Authority; she asked if any action had been 
taken for breaches of condition already reported.  

In response to the comments made, the Senior Mineral & Waste Officer 
confirmed that at the end of the six month period, the applicant would need to 
reapply for a further extension to the working hours.  She confirmed that 
complaints had been received about the site but reminded the Committee that 
this application was only to vary the working hours for the site not for issues 
relating to dust or litter.  Any previous breaches were a matter for the 
Enforcement Team and Natural Resources Wales as they were responsible 
for the provision of a permit to allow the site to operate.  The temporary 
variation of working hours for six months would allow the Planning Authority to 
assess the impact on the local amenity.  The officer was recommending a 
condition about noise limits so that if any issues of the limits being exceeded 
were raised then these could be considered.  She added that the purpose of 
including conditions was to enable the Planning Authority to take action if the 
workings were causing a nuisance.  On the issue of Sunday working, she 
explained that the application was seeking permission for vehicles to be able 
to access the site and tip waste on a Sunday in addition to carrying out 
testing, repairs and maintenance.  In response to comments about breaches 
of conditions, officers had visited the site on a number of occasions and 
monitoring by both the Council and NRW took place and when breaches were 
identified, these were raised with the operator.  On the issue of traffic 
movements and the impact on residents, the officer indicated that vehicles to 
and from the site went in different directions and therefore the main 
consideration was the impact of on-site vehicle movements which had been 
assessed.  It was not felt that a traffic impact assessment was necessary and 
the officer advised that concerns had not been raised by Environmental 
Health Officers.  

The Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) advised that most 
complaints about the site had been addressed but he apologised to Councillor 
Ellis for not replying to her concerns about food waste on the site.  He 

Page 12



indicated that officers accepted that there had been issues about compliance 
but said that no objection had been received from Environmental Health and 
that permitting the additional working hours for a period of six months would 
allow the situation to be monitored.  

In summing up, Councillor Bithell said that there had been problems 
with the site but that the issue of any breaches of condition had not been 
raised by the Local Member, Adjoining Ward Member or Buckley Town 
Council in their consultation responses.  He agreed that conditions needed to 
be addressed and enforced but added that Members should deal with the 
application before them and he reiterated his support for approval for a 
temporary period of six months.  

Councillor Richard Jones felt that a variation of condition was not the 
application before the Committee today and queried whether the applicant 
should have reapplied.  The officer advised that a Section 73 application could 
be approved, refused or used to change the wording of conditions.  The 
applicant had withdrawn their request to vary conditions 4 and 26 and 
therefore these would remain as had been originally permitted.  She felt that 
this was an acceptable way of dealing with a Section 73 application.  

Councillor Ellis said that Councillor Bithell had stated that no comments 
on non-compliance with conditions had been made in the consultation 
responses.  Councillor Ellis indicated that she had made her comments 
verbally to officers when attending County Hall and had therefore not included 
them in her written response.  

On being put to the vote, the application for approval was LOST.  The 
Housing & Planning Solicitor sought a reason for refusal from the Committee.  
Councillor Jones said history of non-compliance and Councillor Ellis felt that 
noise was also currently an issue for residents.  The Solicitor advised that 
history of non-compliance with other conditions was not a reason to refuse 
this application.  He shared Members concerns about breach of conditions but 
he reiterated that this was not a material consideration on this application and 
added that any reasons for refusal needed to be for valid planning reasons as 
an invalid reason could leave the Council open to applications for costs in any 
subsequent appeal.  Councillor Ellis went on to indicate that there was a 
perceived nuisance and extra noise from current workings on the site and said 
that there were currently a number of complaints from residents.  The 
Planning Strategy Manager advised that there were no outstanding 
enforcement issues relating to the site.  Councillor Ellis then proposed that the 
reason for refusal should be on the grounds that the extra working hours 
would increase the perceived noise experienced by nearby residents; this was 
duly seconded.  The Solicitor suggested that a report be submitted to the next 
meeting of the Committee to clarify the wording for the reason for refusal.                   

Page 13



RESOLVED:

That planning permission be refused because of the potential for additional 
impacts on residential amenity from increased working hours and Sunday 
working.   

152. FULL APPLICATION – CHANGE OF USE OF LAND FROM PADDOCK TO 
A TOURING CARAVAN FACILITY (24 TOURING CARAVANS) AND 
ERECTION OF AMENITY BLOCK AT TY HIR, FFORDD GLYNDWR, 
NERCWYS (054629)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application which had been the subject of a 
site visit on 21st March 2016.  The usual consultations had been undertaken 
and the responses received detailed in the report.  Additional comments 
received since the preparation of the report were circulated at the meeting.

The officer detailed the background to the report and referred Members 
to the late observations sheet where comments from Welsh Water, Natural 
Resources Wales, the Council’s Biodiversity Officer and an adjoining resident 
were reported.  Clarification on the use of the existing access and an 
amendment to condition 3 were also reported.  

Ms. K. James spoke against the application on behalf of local 
residents.  She said that whilst policies within the Unitary Development Plan 
(UDP) allowed for new tourism developments in the open countryside, these 
required that the development should not have an unacceptable impact.  She 
felt that it would have an unacceptable impact and stated that the main 
concerns related to the impact on residential amenity, drainage, highway 
safety and visual amenity.  She said that 16 letters of objection had been 
received and none in support of the application.  The proposed site was in 
close proximity to Godrer Foel and would result in direct overlooking to the 
rear of the property which would cause significant and undue harm with 
respect to privacy.  The use of the site would cause additional noise and 
disturbance due to the change from agricultural and the development would 
be in breach of the human rights of nearby residents.  Limited information was 
available about the drainage for foul and waste water in the area and there 
was no evidence that a satisfactory scheme had been provided.  The site was 
accessed by a single track lane and Ffordd Glyndwr was a busy through road.  
Ms. James felt that a traffic management plan could not overcome the 
deficiencies in the highway and was not enforceable.  The density of the 
development would cause considerable visual harm and would be detrimental 
to the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and could not be protected 
by the provision of screening.  

Mr. J. Williams, the agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the 
application.  He commented on the extremely comprehensive report by the 
Planning Officer which he felt addressed all the issues raised and therefore 
had a recommendation of approval.  There had been no objections from 

Page 14



statutory consultees and the proposal could be justified by being a benefit to 
the area and was in accord with local and national policy.  

Councillor V. Hinstridge, from Gwernymynydd Community Council, said 
that the Community Council had objected to the proposal for reasons which 
included issues of the safety of pedestrians and local traffic movements.  The 
area was popular with horse-riders and approval of the application would be a 
danger to them because of vehicle movements to and from the site on narrow 
country lanes.  The proposed site was in open countryside and did not have a 
bus route so would increase traffic in the area and she felt that there was no 
need for an additional caravan site.  The site was in the AONB and the 
proposal was considered to be detrimental to the local area.  There was no 
evidence that the Environment Health officers and Licensing Section had 
been consulted on the proposal.  There were also no details provided with 
respect to the location of the septic tank and no consultation with local 
neighbours on their opinion of the application.  

   Councillor Derek Butler proposed the recommendation for approval 
which was duly seconded.  He said that on the site visit it had been apparent 
that movements of caravans in the area was not an issue as large vehicles 
such as horse-boxes and tractors were able to freely move around the area.  
He indicated that the Clwydian Range & Dee Valley AONB Joint Committee 
had not objected in principle to the proposal which it felt would add to the 
tourism infrastructure of the AONB.  Councillor Chris Bithell said that statutory 
consultees had not objected to the proposal and he could not see any reason 
for refusal that could be defended on appeal.  He sought clarification as to 
whether the site would operate a booking system and in referring to paragraph 
7.09, said that it appeared that prior arrangements would need to be made for 
arrivals and that time of departure would need to be before 12 noon.  A traffic 
management plan had been included with the application and instructed users 
of the site to approach and leave the site from Nercwys Road rather than from 
Gwernymynydd. 

The Local Member, Councillor Nancy Matthews, said that her 
comments had been reported and added that she had asked for Committee 
determination because of the new development in the open countryside which 
was not an expansion of an existing site.  She referred to Policy T1 of the 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) which required sites to be sensitive to the 
environment and to the needs of local people.  She felt that there should have 
been the same rigorous application process as the other new business at 
Cambrian Quarry particularly in relation to the ecological survey.  She spoke 
of the land on the site which provided foraging for various birds and animals 
and referred to a grassland survey that had been carried out in February when 
the common practice was for such surveys to be carried out in mid-summer 
and therefore it was likely that the report did not provide a true picture of the 
species in the area.  It was reported that there was no evidence of badgers on 
site but a buffer zone of 30 metres around the site should have been searched 
for evidence which Councillor Matthews felt would have been found.  
Councillor Matthews said that no account had been taken of Great Crested 
Newts and she commented on the A494 Ruthin Road and Eryrys Road and if 

Page 15



the application was allowed it would impact on other local businesses.  She 
spoke of inadequate screening of the site because of the length of time it 
would take for any newly planted trees to provide the necessary screening.  
The applicant was seeking to provide pitches for touring caravans with toilet 
block but there was no mention of electric hook-up or facilities, drinking water 
taps on the site or for emptying of waste water.  Having earlier declared that 
she may be perceived to have pre-determined her stance on the application, 
Councillor Matthews went to sit at the back of the Chamber and did not take 
part in the remainder of the debate or the vote on the application.          

Councillor Mike Peers said that the site was in an elevated position in 
the open countryside.  This was a much used road and approval of the 
application would cause serious road safety issues and he felt that the roads 
were unsuitable for caravans and would have an impact on pedestrians and 
horses.  He agreed that the proposal would bring tourism to the area but 
disagreed that this was the correct location for such a proposal.  There was a 
need to consider the traffic implications and the lack of passing opportunities 
would make the area dangerous.  Paragraph 7.11 reported that the only route 
considered suitable for access was the stretch of Glyndwr Road running 
north/south from the Nercwys to Eryrys Road.  However Councillor Peers 
referred to the comments of the Head of Highways that a condition be 
included for the erection of a traffic sign indicating that Glyndwr Road was 
unsuitable for caravans.  He felt that a significant consideration was the 
narrowness of the road which did not have a footpath and the road network 
was inadequate for such a proposal.  He referred to paragraph 7.32 where it 
was proposed that a Package Sewage Treatment Plant be included on the 
site.  Councillor Peers felt that the impact on the local amenity and the issues 
with the highways made the site unsuitable for the proposed use.  

Councillor Gareth Roberts felt that the location was very close to the 
road to Nercwys which had wide verges which would allow space for two 
vehicles to pass.  He spoke of the level site, provision of suitable screening 
around the site and an appropriate access and commented that it was in 
accord with planning policy.  Councillor Richard Lloyd felt that the provision of 
passing places would be suggested to the applicant and added that screening 
and the impact on the landscape were important considerations.  He sought 
clarification on the entrance to the site and suggested that the site season 
should start from 1st March, not 31st March as reported in the late 
observations.  Councillor Owen Thomas concurred that the area was not 
suitable for the proposed use as a caravan site and added that it was not 
possible to include passing places on the grass verges.  He felt that there 
were a number of routes that caravans could take to reach the site and that 
not all users would follow the directions provided to them.  

The Senior Engineer – Highways Development Control said the 
condition for signage had been requested to try and restrict the access and 
egress to the site from the Nercwys side.  It was felt that Glyndwr Road was 
suitable for cars but not for caravans and she added that a traffic 
management plan had been included with the application.      

Page 16



In response to the comments made, the officer advised that the issue 
of lighting was covered in condition 14 and that a prior booking arrangement 
would be put in place (as referred to in paragraph 7.09) and the proposal 
would need to be implemented in accordance with the submitted highway 
management plan.  A scheme of approved landscaping was also required.  
The officer confirmed that the site would use the existing entrance and that 
the site operating season could be amended to read 1st March to 14th January 
the following calendar year.  This was proposed by Councillor Lloyd and was 
duly seconded.    

The Planning Strategy Manager said that Councillor Matthews had 
indicated that the proposal was not for the expansion of an existing site but 
reminded Members that it did not need to be (as referred to in Policy T6) and 
therefore the proposal was not contrary to the Tourism policy.  

In summing up, Councillor Butler agreed to include the amended site 
operating dates in his proposal to accept the recommendation and reiterated 
his earlier comments that there had been no objections from statutory 
consultees.  

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the 
report of the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) with an amendment to 
condition 3 to read occupancy restricted to 1st March to 14th January in the 
following calendar year.
 

After the vote had been taken, Councillor Matthews returned to her 
seat in the meeting.  

153. FULL APPLICATION – PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF SOLAR 
PHOTOVOLTAIC PANELS AND ASSOCIATED WORKS INCLUDING 
INVERTER HOUSINGS, ACCESS TRACKS, SECURITY FENCING AND 
CAMERAS AT DEESIDE LANE, SEALAND (053686)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application which had been the subject of a 
site visit on 21st March 2016.  The usual consultations had been undertaken 
and the responses received detailed in the report.  Additional comments 
received since the preparation of the report were circulated at the meeting.  

The officer detailed the background to the report and said that he was 
aware that the applicant had circulated a letter to the Committee Members, 
which had been summarised in the late observations.  The site was in open 
countryside, in the green barrier and was on best and most versatile 
agricultural land (BMV) and that there was therefore no precedent made in 
granting permission for a solar farm at Weighbridge Road, Shotwick.   

Mr. J. Owens spoke against the application on behalf of the 11 families 
in houses which formed ‘The Bowry’ which were the nearest properties to the 

Page 17



site.  He felt that there were a number of errors in the original documentation 
and some misleading photographs of the site which he detailed.  He 
commented on hand delivered leaflets which none of the residents at The 
Bowry had received and neither had any residents on Deeside Lane and 
suggested that there had not been any two-way communications on the 
application.  He spoke of a property that had been reported to be nearest to 
the site at over 400 metres away but The Bowry was only 50 metres from the 
site boundary; on the new diagram the site came right to the boundary of The 
Bowry.  He said that it was been reported that the site was on land to the east 
of Deeside Lane but it was to the west.  He added that the main issue was 
that the area was not an industrial area and residents wanted it to stay that 
way.               

Mr. E. Ramsey-Smith spoke in support of the application.  He said that 
he was optimistic that the Committee would use its privileged position and 
independent judgement in order to future proof job creation and solve the 
power shortage problem on Deeside which was currently a barrier for future 
investors considering relocating to the area.  He trusted that common sense 
would prevail and that Members would vote positively on the application.  He 
spoke of the planning officer’s comments on the site being best and most 
versatile land and the green barrier impacts as a reason to recommend 
refusal of the application although this contradicted the recent approval on the 
grounds of economic benefit of the solar farm at Weighbridge Road which was 
ten times the size of this site.  In the unlikely event of a refusal, the applicant 
had robust legal opinion that the applications would be allowed on appeal.  
The location process was driven by it being sited close to the 11kv grid 
location in Deeside and the Local Planning Authority officers had offered no 
alternative sites nor had they conducted a sequential analysis study or a grid 
network report.  He felt that the only issue for consideration was the 
discounted power agreement with the Northern Gateway developer which had 
not been given the weight it deserved by the Local Planning Authority officers.  
The importance of the site had been recognised by Welsh Government who 
had provided a further £13m towards this infrastructure.  The revenue created 
by the proposed 5,000 jobs was estimated at £100m per annum.  The power 
agreement would ensure that future employers would benefit from cheaper 
electricity when relocating to Flintshire and this was an over-riding economic 
benefit.    

The Housing & Planning Solicitor said that Mr. Ramsey-Smith had 
referred to a legal opinion but he advised that he had not seen the opinion and 
he was not aware that the Committee had seen it either and therefore asked 
Members to treat the comments with extreme caution.  

Councillor Ian Dunbar proposed the recommendation for refusal which 
was duly seconded.  He felt that the site visit put the scheme into perspective 
and allowed Members to see the best and most versatile grade 2 agricultural 
land.  He summarised the comments from the Local Member, Councillor 
Christine Jones, as follows:-
‘As the Local Member, she agreed with the officer recommendation for refusal 
as there was no justification to lose good quality green land in a rural area of 

Page 18



open countryside.  To develop a solar farm in this location would have a 
detrimental impact on the landscape and the site would cause a visual impact 
and have an adverse effect on the landscape and there was also no need for 
the solar farm in this area.  The applicant had indicated that there was interest 
in purchasing the power but the development had not yet commenced on the 
Airfields site and therefore there was no end user for the power and it would 
be put into the national grid with no control over where it would be distributed 
to.  No other firms had shown any commitment and the application should be 
refused.’

Councillor Chris Bithell said that the difference between these two sites 
and the solar farm at UPM was that this was not related to any industry and its 
purpose was therefore speculative.  The site was on grade 2 agricultural land 
which was not often found.  The proposal was premature as there was no end 
user for the power and there was no overriding reason to approve a site on 
grade 2 valuable land which should be protected.  He supported the 
recommendation of refusal.  

Councillor Derek Butler said that he would move approval of the 
application.  He spoke of the comment by the earlier speaker that The Bowry 
was not in an industrial area and said that it was in an enterprise zone which 
required energy.  He spoke of the local infrastructure and added that there 
was a local user who would take the power generated by the proposal.  He 
commented of the report on biodiversity and the local grid connector and 
spoke of the application for UPM.  Councillor Butler said that the Bowry was a 
redundant farm building and he did not think that there would be any harm if 
the field became a site for solar panels.  Councillor David Roney said that it 
had been indicated that there was no end user for the site and commented 
that the Deeside Incinerator also did not have an end user but that application 
was approved.  He felt that sheep could be grazed on the land underneath the 
solar panels and he agreed with Councillor Butler that the application should 
be approved.  

Councillor Marion Bateman sought clarification on the terms green 
barrier and green belt.  Councillor Owen Thomas also agreed with Councillor 
Butler and said that proposals for renewal energy should be encouraged.  He 
added that targets were in place to provide 27% by 2030 and suggested that 
there was a need to improve on these figures.  He felt that the power could be 
used by the Northern Gateway site and Airbus and such schemes should be 
provided before there was a need for it.  Councillor Thomas commented on 
the need for renewable energy to help tackle climate change and felt that all 
forms of low energy providers should be supported.  He quoted from guidance 
from the Assembly Member Carl Sargent to follow guidelines to approve such 
applications and deliver sustainable developments for future generations.  .  

Councillor Gareth Roberts said that there was a need for alternative 
energy sources but did not feel that the site of grade 2 agricultural land was 
the best place for the solar farm to be located and added that there were more 
appropriate places to site them.  He felt that land such as this was very 

Page 19



important and suggested that solar panels could be placed on buildings or on 
brownfield land.     

Councillor Mike Peers referred to paragraph 7.20 and asked whether 
the objection was from the Land Use Planning Unit or from Welsh 
Government (WG).  He queried whether there were any alternative sites that 
could accommodate such a proposal and sought clarification on the current 
use of the land and whether it was awaiting planting.  Councillor Richard 
Jones said that he did not disagree with solar energy but felt that it needed to 
be in the most appropriate location.  WG had objected to the use of the land 
and he added that grade 2 land needed protecting.  He felt that any 
advantage to the enterprise zone should not be given more weight than the 
protection of residential amenity.  Councillor Carol Ellis queried whether a 
decision of approval would be called in by WG as they had objected to the 
proposal.  

In response to the comments made, the officer said that the first point 
to make was that Mr. Ramsey-Smith had said that common sense should be 
applied and discount the subjective view of the planning officer; the officer 
reminded the Committee that they made decisions based on planning policy 
unless there were material considerations to not do so.  It had been 
mentioned that the Planning Authority had not put forward any alternative 
sites; it was not up to the authority to do so and it should be up to the 
applicant to look at other sites as part of the sequential site selection process.  
In response to Councillor Butler’s comments that the site was in an industrial 
area in the Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ); the officer said that it was in the 
DEZ but that did not make it an industrial area.  He confirmed that green 
barrier was a designation used in Wales but carried the same weight as green 
belt which was the term used in England.  He said that approval of the 
application for the Solar Farm to UPM had not set a precedent and spoke of a 
number of factors in relation to that site that did not apply to this site.  In 
commenting on the guidance from the Welsh Minister, the officer said that it 
did not outweigh the policy.  He confirmed that the objection in paragraph 7.20 
was from WG and if the application was approved, it could be called in by 
WG.  He did not know the intention of the farmer for the field but indicated that 
it currently appeared to be partly ploughed.  The Development Manager said 
that what the land was capable of not what the intent for it was that was the 
key consideration in the determination of the application.  

The Planning Strategy Manager spoke of the WG definition of grade 2 
land which was best and most versatile land.  He quoted from the remainder 
of the letter from the Welsh Minister, Carl Sargeant, which said that 
encouragement should be given to making Wales more energy efficient but 
said that there was a need to balance this against the visual impact and the 
policies in place to safeguard against it.  Significant weight should be given to 
the green barrier land policy.  In indicating that the application had taken ten 
months to progress to this stage, the Planning Strategy Manager referred to 
the letter from the applicant in which it said that the only outstanding issues 
related to land quality and economic impact; both of these issues were there 
at day one.  There was no evidence that there was a legally binding 

Page 20



agreement for an end user to take the energy and he reiterated earlier 
comments that energy could go anywhere if it was sold back to the grid.  

In summing up, Councillor Dunbar said that WG had objected to the 
loss of best and most versatile land and he added that there was no end user 
for the energy and that it could be 18 months to two years before the Northern 
Gateway development was in place.  The site was also on green barrier land.        

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be refused for the reasons detailed in the report of 
the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment).  

154. FULL APPLICATION – DEVELOPMENT OF SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC 
PANELS AND ASSOCIATED WORKS INCLUDING INVERTER HOUSINGS, 
ACCESS TRACKS, SECURITY FENCING AND CAMERAS AT MANOR 
FARM, DEESIDE LANE, SEALAND (053687)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application which had been the subject of a 
site visit on 21st March 2016.  The usual consultations had been undertaken 
and the responses received detailed in the report.  Additional comments 
received since the preparation of the report were circulated at the meeting.  

The officer detailed the background to the report.   

Councillor Chris Bithell proposed the recommendation for refusal which 
was duly seconded.  He felt that the same reasons for refusal applied to this 
application as to the previous application on the agenda and as there was no 
identified end user for the power, the application should be refused.  

Councillor Ian Dunbar read out comments from the Local Member, 
Councillor Christine Jones which were summarised as follows:
‘The application was for a site in the open countryside and on green belt land.  
It would have a detrimental impact and harm the landscape and even though 
an expression of interest for the power had been received from the Airfields 
development at Northern Gateway, that site had not yet been developed and 
therefore there was no end user for the power.  Solar farms should be on 
brownfield sites not on grade 2 land which Councillor Jones felt should be 
used for farming’.

In referring to the site which would provide renewable energy, 
Councillor Owen Thomas commented on the grading of the land and 
suggested that it was possible to transfer the power from the site.  He felt that 
renewable energy should be considered and that alternative sites had not 
been put forward by the Council.  

Councillor Derek Butler spoke of the two landfill sites in Buckley that 
had been approved for solar farms.  He felt that there was a need for 
renewable energy and queried whether the policy determined that there had 

Page 21



to be an end user for the power.  He commented on an employment land 
review and indicated that the Deeside Enterprise Zone was the first carbon 
neutral Enterprise Zone in North Wales, which he felt was a material 
consideration.  Councillor Richard Jones felt that the use of grade 2 quality 
land for such a proposal outweighed the issue of economic development.  
Councillor David Roney referred to the comments about an end user not being 
in place and said that this had not been an issue when the Committee was 
considering the proposal for the incinerator on Deeside Industrial Park which 
also did not have an end user but was approved.  He felt that this type of 
proposal was the way forward and indicated that he would vote in favour of 
the application.    

  In response to the comments made, the officer confirmed that it was 
not the responsibility of the Council to find sites but that did not mean that 
there weren’t any alternatives in the county.  In referring to the policy, he 
added that the suggestion to approve the application for economic benefits 
was not possible as there was no ‘end user’ for the power.  On the issue of 
the Deeside Incinerator, the officer advised that that site had not been in the 
open countryside, was not on best and most versatile land and was not in the 
green barrier and therefore the decision to approve the application had been 
in accord with planning policy.  

The Planning Strategy Manager said that the fact that there was no end 
user was not the reason that the application was recommended for refusal, it 
was because of the unacceptable loss of best and most versatile land and the 
green barrier impact.  

In summing up, Councillor Bithell said that the site was in open 
countryside and in the green barrier.  The land where the solar farms that had 
been approved was not of such good quality and he felt that these panels 
could be located elsewhere suggesting the roof space of industrial buildings.  
On the issue of no end user for the Deeside Incinerator, he said that it was to 
be used by the other authorities in North Wales, as well as Flintshire, and 
therefore could not be compared to this application.        

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be refused for the reasons detailed in the report of 
the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment).  

155. OUTLINE APPLICATION – RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT WITH DETAILS 
OF ACCESS AT PANDY GARAGE, CHESTER ROAD, OAKENHOLT 
(054077)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application which had been the subject of a 
site visit on 21st March 2016.  The usual consultations had been undertaken 
and the responses received detailed in the report.  Additional comments 
received since the preparation of the report were circulated at the meeting.  

Page 22



The officer detailed the background to the report and explained that this 
was an outline application with all other matters except access reserved for 
future consideration.  The site had had a number of industrial uses and the 
main issues for consideration related to archaeological implications of the 
development, flood risk and highways.  The site lay within flood zone C2 and 
there was a pond located to the west of the site.  A flood consequences 
assessment had been submitted with the application and Natural Resources 
Wales (NRW) had no objections to the proposals subject to conditions relating 
to surface water and finished floor levels.  On the issue of archaeology, Clwyd 
Powys Archaeological Trust (CPAT) had advised that the site fell within an 
area of high archaeological sensitivity and it was therefore considered that 
due to the brownfield nature of the site, it would be reasonable to condition 
any archaeological investigations to part of the reserved matters submission 
in order to inform the proposed layout.  

On the issue of access, it was proposed to create one access point to 
the centre of the site frontage to serve the proposed residential development 
and this had been accepted by Highways who had not submitted any 
objections to the proposals subject to the imposition of conditions as set out in 
their response.  Welsh Water had objected to a new connection in this 
location into the foul network as there was insufficient capacity in the existing 
network.  However, there were a number of businesses on this site which had 
connections into the network which would be replace those flows; calculations 
could be undertaken at the reserved matters stage.  Concerns had been 
raised about the impact on the residential amenity and any detailed layout 
would need to take account of the adjacent dwelling Rubern to ensure that 
there was no detrimental impact in terms of overlooking and to achieve a 
layout and design that was in scale with the adjacent property.  The Section 
106 obligation related to educational contributions for Croes Atti Primary 
School and a contribution in lieu of on-site open space provision to fund 
improvements to the adjacent play area at Croes Atti Lane.          

Councillor Ian Dunbar proposed the recommendation for approval 
which was duly seconded.  He said that Highways had provided assurances 
on highway issues and screening would be considered at the reserved 
matters stage to ensure that the neighbouring property was not overlooked.  

The Local Member, Councillor Rita Johnson, raised concern about the 
nearby reservoir which was higher than the ground level of the site which was 
in a known flood risk area.  She quoted from Planning Policy Statement 25 
which indicated that developments in such areas should be avoided where 
possible and suggested that this development was not required due to the 
large housing development nearby.  She explained that the A548 had been 
closed in the past because of flooding and felt that building additional 
properties in this area was likely to increase the risk of flooding.  Councillor 
Johnson felt that hedgerow in the area would assist in reducing the risk of 
flooding but raised concern that the removal of hedgerow in the area for the 
creation of this and other developments would further increase the risk of 
flooding.  She said that the site had always been for light commercial use and 
it was still a busy working site.  She felt that it was important to protect and 

Page 23



promote local jobs, not lose them for additional housing which was not needed 
in this location.  

Councillor Owen Thomas referred to the last sentence in the comments 
from CPAT which indicated that, in their opinion, the application should not be 
determined until the archaeological resource had been properly evaluated.  
Councillor Richard Jones said that both CADW and CPAT had commented on 
the archaeological history of the site which he felt should be considered by 
Members in their determination of the application.  Councillor Chris Bithell 
agreed about the archaeological importance of the site and suggested that a 
condition be included for an archaeological watching brief to ensure that if 
there were any historical signs on the site that they were to be preserved, 
photographed and commented on.  Councillor Mike Peers felt that the current 
use of the site as a small industrial enterprise should be taken into account as 
it provided local employment.  Councillor Richard Lloyd felt that the area was 
suitable for housing but referred to the comments of Welsh Water who had 
raised concerns about incidents of flooding in the area and had raised 
objection to the application.  He asked if it was appropriate to include a 
‘grampian-style’ condition that work could not commence on the site until 
improvements had been made to the sewerage system.  

Councillor Gareth Roberts concurred that this was a site of 
archaeological importance and spoke of the need to ensure that investigations 
on the site were carried out.  Councillor David Roney referred to the issue of 
flooding and felt that increasing the amount of concrete in the ground would 
increase the risk of flooding and suggested that building should not take place 
on this site or on the nearby site where 700 houses were proposed to be built.  
Councillor David Cox indicated that photographs of the archaeological site 
had been taken approximately 15 years ago and suggested that a report on 
the archaeological investigations on the site should be prepared.  Councillor 
Derek Butler referred to the 19 conditions on the application and said that the 
request from CADW for scheduled ancient monument consent should also be 
conditioned.  In referring to the concerns raised by Welsh Water about 
flooding in their consultation response on page 166, Councillor Marion 
Bateman sought assurance that mitigation would be put in place at the 
reserved matters stage.  Councillor Ray Hughes queried how the finished floor 
levels requested by Natural Resources Wales to alleviate the flood risk would 
be managed.  He felt that the application should be refused due to concerns 
about the drainage issues in the area.  

In response to the comments made, the officer indicated that a flood 
consequences assessment had been submitted as part of the application.  
The site was not an allocated employment site and the proposal for residential 
development was on a sustainable location and was in accordance with 
policy.  She felt that it was not necessary to include a condition for the 
scheduled ancient monument consent and referred Members to condition 6 
about the requirement for an archaeological investigation to take place prior to 
the reserved matters submission.  The officer explained that the site was a 
brownfield site and advised that the comments of Welsh Water indicated that 
a further assessment of the sewer network would be required to consider the 

Page 24



impact of the development on the sewerage network; this could be 
investigated at the reserved matters stage.  

The Planning Strategy Manager advised that the suggested hydraulic 
modelling assessment work by Welsh Water would be at the expense of the 
developer and would determine the capacity and whether any improvement 
works were required.  On the issue of the archaeological history of the site, he 
reminded the Committee that development of the site could not commence 
until an archaeological assessment had been carried out.  

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the 
report of the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) and subject to the 
applicant entering into a Section 106 obligation/Unilateral Undertaking to 
provide the following:-

a. Payment of £49,028 towards educational 
provision/improvements (toilets) for Croes Atti Primary School;

b. Contribution of £1,100 per dwelling in lieu of on-site open space 
provision to fund improvements to the adjacent play area at 
Croes Atti Lane. 

If the obligation pursuant to Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990 (as outlined above) is not completed within six months of the date of the 
committee resolution, the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) be given 
delegated authority to REFUSE the application.  

156. FULL APPLICATION – ERECTION OF 4 NO. DWELLINGS (STARTER 
HOMES) AT RHYDDYN FARM, BRIDGE END, CAERGWRLE (054615)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application.  The usual consultations had been 
undertaken and the responses received detailed in the report.  Additional 
comments received since the preparation of the report were circulated at the 
meeting.  

The officer detailed the background to the report and explained that the 
site was adjacent to the new medical centre which was currently being 
constructed.  The period for monitoring growth of a settlement ended on 1 
April 2015 and as at that date, the settlement had a growth rate of 10% over 
the plan period which was within the indicative growth band of 8 to 15% for a 
Category B settlement.  The application, which was in a sustainable location, 
complied with policy and was considered acceptable as the Council did not 
have a five year housing land supply.  Other issues for consideration included 
the impact on the open countryside and on Wat’s Dyke.  Clwyd Powys 
Archaeological Trust (CPAT) had indicated in their consultation response that 
the proposal for four dwellings on the site took account of pre-application 
advice to limit the size and orientation of the layout.  Access to the site would 
be from the A550 and Highways had not raised any objections in relation to 

Page 25



parking or turning of vehicles.  On the issue of impact on residential amenity, 
the officer explained that the properties on Queensway, which this site was 
adjacent to, had long gardens and therefore the space around dwellings 
guidelines had been exceeded.  

Mr. D. McChesney, the agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the 
application.  He felt that there was overwhelming demand for starter homes in 
the area and that this development would provide this type of property.  The 
design met the economic and social needs and guidance from CPAT on the 
impact of the development on Wat’s Dyke had been taken into account.  The 
properties would have three bedrooms and were all north/south facing and 
would include solar panels on the roof and the site was in a sustainable 
location with easy access to the local schools and amenities.  Mr. McChesney 
felt that the proposal was for an infill development and was a sustainable 
development and was sensitive to its surroundings.  He therefore requested 
that the Committee approve the application.     

Councillor Mike Peers proposed refusal of the application, against 
officer recommendation, which was duly seconded.  He said that the 
application site was outside the settlement boundary and added that the plans 
displayed appeared to look like four bedroomed homes rather than houses for 
affordable local need.  He asked whether the site had been put forward as a 
candidate site in the Local Development Plan (LDP) and added that the 
growth rate within the settlement for the plan period was 10% which meant 
that 5% was still available within the boundary before the growth rate of 15% 
was reached.  Councillor Peers queried why the application had been put 
forward for approval when other sites outside the settlement boundary had 
been recommended for refusal and suggested that approval of this application 
would set a precedent for other developers to submit applications outside the 
settlement boundary.  He recognised the issue of a lack of five year housing 
land supply but he felt that there was still capacity within the area through the 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and that this application should be refused 
to comply with the Council’s policies.  Councillor David Roney concurred and 
commented on other applications outside the settlement boundary which 
Members had been recommended to refuse and he expressed concern that 
this application was being reported for approval.    

The Local Member, Councillor Tim Newhouse, said that he regularly 
asked for applications to be dealt with by delegated powers rather than be 
considered by the Committee, even if there were a number of objections from 
residents.  He commented on other applications in the area such as a 
development in Stryt Isa for 19 dwellings on a site within the settlement 
boundary which was also a windfall site.  A further 58 homes had been built 
off Fagl Lane and 35 in Abermorddu which was part of the Hope settlement.  
These three applications totalled 112 dwellings and assurance had been 
sought that development beyond these sites would not be permitted as the 
land was outside the settlement boundary and this assurance had been 
provided by the Planning Officers.  Councillor Newhouse added that there had 
also been a number of successful applications within the settlement for 
developments of between one and three new homes.  Applications for sites 

Page 26



outside the settlement boundary were permitted if they were for developments 
of a community benefit such as a medical centre or sports pavilion and should 
only be permitted for housing if a settlement was not meeting its target for new 
housing; Hope was meeting its target.  Councillor Newhouse quoted from 
Planning Policy Wales guidance and asked the Committee to refuse the 
application rather than setting a dangerous precedent for approving an 
application outside the settlement boundary.    

Councillor Chris Bithell concurred that the site was outside the 
settlement boundary.  He indicated that there was a policy in place to provide 
for affordable homes outside the settlement boundary but added that there 
was still capacity within the growth figure for additional homes and therefore 
this proposal was not appropriate.  He raised concern about the closeness of 
the dwellings to Wat’s Dyke which was a local and national feature and in 
suggesting that the site could be a candidate site, he felt that this proposal 
was premature.  Councillor Gareth Roberts agreed and commented that 
assurance had been provided that the UDP was the plan that consideration 
needed to be given to when considering applications.  He added that policies 
were in place to prevent inappropriate new build outside the settlement 
boundary and expressed concern about the close proximity of the site to 
Wat’s Dyke.  He agreed that the application should be refused.  

Councillor Alison Halford referred to the third paragraph on page 184 
and the comments from CPAT and sought assurance that an archaeological 
assessment would take place.  She also referred to the public footpath 64 
which the Public Rights of Way officer had indicated appeared to be 
unaffected by the development.   

In response to the comments made, the officer said that the growth rate 
for the area was 10% which included allocations and in line with Technical 
Advice Note (TAN) 1, the four proposed dwellings in a sustainable location 
would contribute to the housing supply for the County.  On the comments by 
Councillor Halford, the officer advised that CADW did not object to the 
proposal and therefore neither did CPAT.  She added that the response from 
Public Rights of Way was a standard response but it confirmed that the 
footpath was unaffected by the development.  

The Planning Strategy Manager did not think that the site had been 
submitted as a candidate site but even if it had, this would not have any 
weight over the determination of the application.  A unique situation had been 
created because of the health centre site and in referring to Section 38 of the 
Act, he reminded Members that the lack of housing land supply was a material 
consideration when determining this application.  He advised that the planning 
application that Councillor Roney had referred to had been determined by 
different policies and therefore required different consideration.  On the 
comments made by Councillor Newhouse, he spoke of the application for the 
health centre and said that each proposal needed to be considered on its own 
merits.  He felt that it was incorrect to say that there was 5% capacity within 
the settlement boundary and queried where such sites were and said that 

Page 27



there was no evidence for the existence of white land.  He added that there 
was no evidence of the harm that permitting this application would create.  

In response to a comment from Councillor Bithell about whether the 
dwellings were ‘starter homes’, the officer advised that they would be sold at 
market rate but the applicant considered them to be ‘starter homes’.  

In summing up, Councillor Peers felt that the suggestion of starter 
homes was a ploy to get the application approved, as had been the case for 
the Aldi application in Broughton.  He spoke of policies in place for the 
provision of affordable homes and reiterated his earlier comments that the 
application should be refused as it was outside the settlement boundary.  He 
said that 112 new homes had been provided in the area and therefore there 
was no justification for these dwellings.  

On being put to the vote, the proposal to refuse the application, against 
officer recommendation, was CARRIED unanimously.           

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be refused as the site was outside the settlement 
boundary, was an inappropriate development in the open countryside and 
would have a landscape impact due to its close proximity to Wat’s Dyke.   

157. FULL APPLICATION – CHANGE OF USE TO 16 NO. APARTMENTS WITH 
ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING AT 1-3 PIERCE STREET, QUEENSFERRY 
(054668)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application.  The usual consultations had been 
undertaken and the responses received detailed in the report.

The officer detailed the background to the report and explained that the 
application had been considered by the Committee in 2015 but had been 
refused as the Section 106 agreement had not been signed by the applicant.  

Councillor Chris Bithell proposed the recommendation for approval 
which was duly seconded.  He felt that the application was for appropriate use 
for such a prominent building and said that any issues raised had been 
addressed.  Councillor Ian Dunbar indicated that the building was in a 
commercial area but there were other residential properties in the area.  The 
building had been vandalised and the application was welcomed to bring the 
building back into use.  

In referring to the Council’s policy for provision of parking spaces, 
Councillor Mike Peers felt that the issue should be reconsidered by the 
Planning Strategy Group.  The maximum standards for this site would require 
24 parking spaces but as it was deemed that this site was within walking 
distance of the town centre and had excellent public transport provision and 
nearby public car parks, only five spaces were being provided on the site.  

Page 28



Councillor Derek Butler asked whether the telecommunication 
equipment was to be removed from the roof of the building.  The officer 
confirmed that it was to remain in place and added that the maintenance of 
the equipment was not a planning consideration.    

Councillor Richard Jones sought clarification that no more than five 
Section 106 (S106) agreements had been requested for Deeside Leisure 
Centre, to ensure that the request complied with Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) regulations.  The officer confirmed that the S106 obligation for 
enhancement to the children’s play area at Deeside Leisure Centre was CIL 
compliant.        

In summing up, Councillor Bithell said that he had also been concerned 
about the small number of parking spaces being provided on site compared to 
the maximum standards in the Council’s policy.  He agreed that it needed to 
be reconsidered by the Planning Strategy Group and the concerns addressed 
in the production of the Local Development Plan.  He felt that residents would 
still own cars and even though the report stated that there were public car 
parks nearby, the Council were now charging for parking in these areas.       

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the 
report of the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) and subject to the 
applicant entering into a Section 106 Obligation or Unilateral Undertaking, or 
making advance payment  to secure the following:-

a. Ensure the payment of a contribution of £11,728 in lieu of on site 
recreation provision, the sum to be used to enhance the 
children’s play area at Deeside Leisure Centre.  The contribution 
shall be paid upon 50% of occupation or sale of the apartments 
hereby approved.

b. Ensure the payment of a contribution of £3,000 towards the cost 
of amending existing Traffic Regulation Order to amend existing 
street parking bays and provide ‘H markings’ across the site 
access.  Such sum to be paid prior to the commencement of the 
development hereby approved.   

If the obligation pursuant to Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990 is not completed within six months of the date of the committee 
resolution, the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) be given delegated 
authority to REFUSE the application.  

Page 29



158. FULL APPLICATION – CHANGE OF USE FROM A GUEST HOUSE TO A 
SMALL GROUP RESIDENTIAL CHILDREN’S HOME AT GERDDI BEUNO, 
WHITFORD STREET, HOLYWELL (054594)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application which had been the subject of a 
site visit on 21st March 2016.  The usual consultations had been undertaken 
and the responses received detailed in the report.  Additional comments 
received since the preparation of the report were circulated at the meeting.  

The officer detailed the background to the report and explained that the 
main issues for consideration included the principle of development, highway 
implications, and effects upon the amenities of adjoining residents and upon 
existing health facilities in the area.  

Mrs. Y. Bird spoke against the application on behalf of residents in 
neighbouring properties.  She expressed significant concerns raised by 
herself and her neighbours which she felt should be taken account of when 
considering the application.  She said that this was an extremely complex 
issue and she felt that there had been a lack of clarification and transparency 
about the intended users of the facility and the impact that this would have on 
the area.  It was felt that the proposed small group residential children’s home 
could have a negative effect on the neighbourhood which could have long 
lasting detrimental effect.  Many residents had moved to the area because it 
was a quiet location and Mrs. Bird referred to the lack of consultation and 
reassurance provided as part of the application.  The third concern related to 
the proposed use of the building which Mrs. Bird felt had not been made clear.    

Mr. J. O’Leary, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.  He 
thanked the officer for the positive recommendation in the report and provided 
clarity for the committee of the comments in the late observations.  He 
explained that there were only three types of registration for such facilities, 
which he detailed, and initially it had been intended that the home would be 
for young people subject to Child Sexual Exploitation but following a meeting 
with officers, it was preferred that the registration was not specialised.  It was 
intended to close the facility in Flint if this application was approved.  On the 
issue of the impact on the wider community, he said there would be high 
staffing levels and it was not intended that there would be any impact on the 
community and added that the applicant operated nine other homes and there 
had not been any neighbour issues.  This facility would replicate a family 
environment and said that one of the issues that had to combatted was the 
exclusion of looked after children and it was hoped that the community at 
large would be supportive of the need to safeguard the wellbeing of these 
children.  

Councillor Gareth Roberts proposed refusal of the application, against 
officer recommendation, which was duly seconded.  He said that the site was 
in a residential area and backed on to two primary schools and overlooked a 
smaller children’s play area.  Any perceived threat would inhibit the use of the 
play area and the children would have to use another play area which was up 

Page 30



two flights of stairs.  He felt that there was no need for such a facility in the 
County which he felt would cater for those who lived outside the area and the 
Council would have no control over who stayed there.  The applicant stated it 
would be for five teenage girls but if approved any person with any 
behavioural problem could stay there.  The perception of risk was a material 
planning consideration and Councillor Roberts added that the site was in an 
inappropriate location for such a facility.  On the comments in the late 
observations, he shared the concerns raised by the Children’s & Workforce 
Services Manager.  

Councillor Chris Bithell said it was inevitable that there was a need for 
these children to be cared for and dealt with but he was not sure if all that had 
been said was a material planning consideration.  He spoke of a children’s 
home that had previously been in Mold and the problems that had been 
experienced even though assurances had been given that there would not be 
any issues.  He said that there had been a high level of supervision at the 
facility but there had been no control and it resulted in problems for local 
people.  There was no evidence of whether the homes had operated well 
elsewhere and he felt that there were too many unknowns and insufficient 
evidence and therefore agreed that the application should be refused.  
Councillor Derek Butler spoke of his wife who had worked with those who 
required specialist care.  He felt that there were no planning grounds to refuse 
the application apart from the possible disruptive nature of the individuals who 
would live in the children’s home but suggested that it may be in the incorrect 
location.  Councillor Richard Jones said that there was a need to integrate the 
young people into society and felt that it was sited in the correct location and 
added that he could see no reason to refuse the application.  

Councillor Marion Bateman queried whether the guest house had been 
a going concern.  Councillor Nancy Matthews commented that if it had 
remained as a guest house, local residents could not choose the guests that 
stayed there and spoke of ‘deprivation of liberty’ and whether the unit would 
be secure or operating with more freedom for its residents.  Councillor Richard 
Lloyd said that the screening had been good except for one area and raised 
concern that the school playing area was very close and as noise could 
clearly be heard from the school, then the children in the playground would 
hear any noises from the children’s home.  He felt that the facility would not be 
in the correct location and Councillor David Cox concurred.  He commented 
on the proposal which was solely for a change of use and felt that advice 
needed to be sought on a direction for the Committee and raised concern that 
such a decision was not in the Committee’s remit.  

The Housing & Planning Solicitor advised that the fear of the impact of 
a use of land on the surrounding area was capable of being a material 
planning consideration depending on the particular circumstances; the officer 
had treated it as such in his report but had given limited weight to it in light of 
the supervision arrangements.  

Councillor Neville Phillips queried whether the application could be 
deferred to receive more information.  The Chief Officer (Planning and 

Page 31



Environment) sought clarification on the details that the Committee felt it 
would need to make a decision.  Councillor Marion Bateman referred to the 
report where it was indicated that further discussions with the applicant were 
to be held and would be reported as late observations to the committee; she 
did not feel that Members had received information on those discussions.    
Councillor Richard Jones referred to page 209 where it was reported that this 
property would replace the facility in Flint so felt that if there had not been any 
complaints reported at that facility, then it could be assumed that there would 
not be any complaints as part of this proposal.  

In response to the comments made, the Development Manager 
appreciated that this was a difficult decision for the Committee to make.  He 
said that there were other issues such as health facilities but said that from a 
planning perspective it was a straight forward application for a change of use 
which was to provide a residential facility with an element of care.  It was 
proposed that the first use was for a small scale intensive care unit but 
Members needed to be aware that it could develop into a similar type of 
facility without the need for a further planning permission.  It had been said 
that the facility should not be in a residential area but Mr. O’Leary had spoken 
of the need to provide the residents with a home base to recuperate and on 
this basis a residential area was appropriate.  From a planning perspective 
officers believed that the controls were in place particularly by limiting the 
number of residents, hence the recommendation of approval.    

In summing up, Councillor Roberts spoke of the perception of risk 
which he felt was a material consideration.  He was not against care facilities 
and in referring to the restriction to five residents, he spoke of a facility in 
Holywell with five residents and the issues and problems that had occurred 
there.  He said that there were people with real needs and behavioural 
problems with challenging issues but he reminded members that it overlooked 
a small children’s play area and he felt that there was no alternative but to 
refuse the application.  

On being put to the vote, the proposal to refuse the application, against 
officer recommendation, was CARRIED.  Councillor Nancy Matthews asked 
that her abstention from voting be recorded in the minutes.      

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be refused because of the perceived detrimental 
impact of the use on residential amenity and because it was in close proximity 
to schools.  

159. FULL APPLICATION – CHANGE OF USE FROM AGRICULTURAL TO 
RESIDENTIAL AND SITING OF PARK HOME AT BRYN HEDYDD FARM, 
LLYN HELYG, LLOC (054686)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application which had been the subject of a 
site visit on 21st March 2016.  The usual consultations had been undertaken 

Page 32



and the responses received detailed in the report.  Additional comments 
received since the preparation of the report were circulated at the meeting.

The officer detailed the background to the application and drew 
Members’ attention to the late observations where the size of the park home 
was clarified.  

Mr. J. Williams, the agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the 
application.  He felt that there were two issues in relation to the application 
which were the urbanisation of the open countryside and the need for the park 
home.  He referred to the intended siting of the park home which Members 
had seen on the site visit and suggested that approval of the application in this 
location would not lead to the urbanisation of the countryside.  On the issue of 
need, he said that it was a family run rural enterprise and the location of the 
park home was important to allow the continuation of the equine nature of the 
business.  

Councillor Chris Bithell proposed the recommendation for refusal which 
was duly seconded.  He felt that the relative that wanted to retire could live 
elsewhere to allow those running the businesses to live in the farmhouse.  He 
queried why the application had required consideration by the Committee as 
he felt it was unwarranted and unnecessary and should have been refused 
under delegated powers.  Councillor Gareth Roberts said that it had been 
suggested that the park home was needed to be close to the horses but he 
felt that the farmhouse was suitably located for this purpose.  He felt that 
approving this application would set a precedent and refusing other 
applications in similar locations would be difficult.  

The Local Member, Councillor Chris Dolphin, spoke in support of the 
application.  He felt that the proposal complied with Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) 6 and concurred with the agent that it would not lead to the urbanisation 
of the countryside.  He felt that the provision of the park home was 
appropriate and it contributed to the rural enterprise which employed local 
people.  Paragraph 7.03 referred to the reasons for the provision of the park 
home and why it was unreasonable for all of the family members to share the 
farmhouse and the report also provided details of the financial reports that had 
been submitted by the applicant which justified the need for a worker to live on 
site to be close to their work.  Councillor Dolphin referred to the proposed 
location of the park home which would be closer to the stables than the 
farmhouse and was therefore necessary.  

Councillor Richard Jones disagreed with the need for the park home 
and felt that approval would set a precedent.  Councillor Owen Thomas 
agreed with Councillor Dolphin that the application should be approved and 
that there was a need to accommodate the worker required for the livery 
business.  Councillor Derek Butler felt that there was no planning reason to 
permit the application which was for a new building in the open countryside.  
In referring to paragraph 7.15, Councillor Mike Peers queried where the visual 
detriment applied to.  He referred to the site visit where Members had seen 
two caravan parks in the area and a nearby plant hire business and said that 

Page 33



there was a need to consider what was already in the area.  He asked 
whether the park home was required for a member of the family or for a 
worker employed by the family.  Councillor Nancy Matthews queried why the 
application was not for an agricultural workers dwelling which could be 
considered in open countryside.  

In response to the comments made, the officer said that the visual 
detriment would be because the park home would be able to be seen from the 
track if it was permitted.  He added that it was intended that the daughter and 
her family would use the park home to run the livery side of the business.  

The Planning Strategy Manager said that permitting such an 
application in open countryside without good planning reason would set a 
precedent and would have an impact on the open countryside even if the site 
could not be seen by the public.  He felt that the reason for the park home did 
not outweigh the Council’s policies and added that there was no need for a 
worker to live on site.  In response to the question from Councillor Matthews, 
the Planning Strategy Manager said that the application had not been 
submitted as being for an agricultural workers dwelling but as a result of the 
businesses being separated.               

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be refused for the reason detailed in the report of 
the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment).  

160. FULL APPLICATION – ERECTION OF 20 NO. SEMI-DETACHED HOUSES, 
2 NO. SEMI-DETACHED BUNGALOWS AND 1 NO. SPECIAL NEEDS 
BUNGALOW TOGETHER WITH ACCESS ROAD AND PARKING AT LAND 
OFF COED ONN ROAD, FLINT (053662)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application.  The usual consultations had been 
undertaken and the responses received detailed in the report.

The officer detailed the background to the report and explained that the 
Local Members had not objected to the proposal but the adjoining Ward 
Member had concerns about the application.  The site had been granted 
permission for 23 dwellings and this application was seeking to vary the house 
types of some of the properties.  

Prior to speaking against the application, Mr. J. Yorke asked whether 
the application could be determined as the site notice did not show a date on 
it.  

Councillor Chris Bithell proposed deferral of the application to allow 
further consultation, which was duly seconded. 

Page 34



RESOLVED:

That the application be deferred to allow further consultation to take place.  

161. CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO RESIDIENTIAL CURTILAGE AND 
ERECTION OF FENCE AT WHITE HOUSE, SEALAND ROAD, SEALAND 
(054753)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application which had been the subject of a 
site visit on 21st March 2016.  The usual consultations had been undertaken 
and the responses received detailed in the report.

The officer detailed the background to the report and advised that this 
was a retrospective application as the fence had already been erected.   

Mr. R. Grace, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.  He felt 
that the two issues for consideration were the change of use to a garden area 
which he felt was misleading as paragraph 7.02 implied that the applicant had 
changed the use from countryside to garden; the area had always been 
garden even though it had not previously been maintained as such by the 
previous owner.  He had not sought prior planning permission from the 
Council when purchasing the land adjacent to his property as when it was sold 
by the Council to the previous owner of the property as garden, he had 
applied for planning permission for three detached dwellings but as outline 
permission had not been approved, the area had remained as garden.  The 
land registry documents from when he purchased the land in 2015 indicated 
that a fence should be erected on the land.  The second issue was the fence 
which had been suggested would have a detrimental impact on the area 
which Mr. Grace also felt was confusing as both this property and the next 
door property had been granted permission for a two metre fence to secure 
their boundary.  It was recommended that the fence would need to be moved 
back one metre and plant a hedge although it was already two metres from 
the highway.  He commented that the two metre rule was not published by the 
Council although many other Councils had published guidelines on the issue.  
He was willing to plant a hedge in front of the fence if appearance was the 
issue and referred to an issue in 2012 where a car crashed through the fence 
and into his property.  

Councillor Chris Bithell proposed the recommendation for refusal which 
was duly seconded.  He felt that the report suggested that the fence could 
remain if appropriate hedging was planted in front of it.  In referring to the site 
history, Councillor Derek Butler spoke of a similar application that had been 
refused but the fence had been erected by the applicant.  He said that there 
should be an open aspect to the area and that if the application was refused, 
then the fence would need to be removed.  

Councillor Richard Lloyd sought clarification on whether the applicant 
owned the land up to the boundary as a streetlight was situated on the area.  
He suggested that the planting of other hedging in front of the fence could 

Page 35



reduce its impact.  Councillor Gareth Roberts spoke of the area and said that 
there were properties across the road which had fences and hedges higher 
than what was in place on this site and added that this fence would make the 
garden area a safer place for the applicant’s children to play in.  He felt that if 
the application was refused, and appealed by the applicant, then considerable 
costs could be awarded against the Council.  Councillor Ian Dunbar spoke on 
behalf of the Local Member, Councillor Christine Jones and summarised her 
comments as follows:-
‘The fence provided a safety and sound barrier from the adjacent A548 and 
quick growing conifers could be planted in front of it which would make the 
fencing acceptable and not harmful to the area.’  

Councillor Mike Peers commented on the fence at a nearby derelict site 
and said that a fence of this size was required because of the size of the 
garden.  He suggested that the fence could be painted green to reduce the 
impact on the area and added that the applicant had indicated that he was 
willing to put planting in front of the fence.  He sought clarification on the issue 
of the hedge and fence and said that the fence protected the applicant’s 
property.  

In response, the Development Manager said that this site was in the 
open countryside and he agreed that the fence might be appropriate in an 
urban setting but the application before Members also sought the change of 
use of the area behind the fence to garden area.  Officers were not overly 
concerned about this aspect if the boundary was appropriate for the open 
countryside.  He said that if Members were mindful to approve the application 
then they could consider the inclusion of a condition to provide planting in 
front of the fence.  

Councillor Peers sought clarification of the point raised by the applicant 
that the land had been purchased from the Council for garden use.  The 
Development Manager said that the fact that the application included the 
change of use suggested that the change of use had not already been 
agreed.  The Planning Strategy Manager said that the applicant had indicated 
that the fence was required because of safety concerns but following this 
there was a material consideration which Members had to take into account 
which was whether it was appropriate to use the land as garden.  

Councillor Butler reiterated his earlier comments that the previous 
application for a fence had been refused but it was erected by the applicant 
without permission.  He sought clarification on whether the land was in the 
ownership of the applicant or the Council.  The officer confirmed that the strip 
of land had been sold to the applicant by the Council but not for use as a 
garden.  

On being put to the vote, the proposal to refuse the application was 
LOST.  The Housing & Planning Solicitor suggested that delegated authority 
be given to the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) to approve 
conditions and to determine whether there was a need for a Section 106 
obligation to be attached to the permission.  Councillor Richard Jones 

Page 36



suggested that permitted development rights could be removed and the fence 
be approved with appropriate hedging or screening planted in front of it.  On 
being put to the vote, this proposal was CARRIED.         

RESOLVED:

That planning permission be granted subject to conditions to include the 
removal of permitted development rights and requiring planting and retention 
of hedge of appropriate species on the outside of the fence.  

162. GENERAL MATTERS – TO AGREE THE WORDING OF REFUSAL FOR 
PLANNING APPLICATION 053957 – DISPLAY RECYCLING AT UNIT 8A – 
8B, ANTELOPE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, RHYDYMWYN (053957)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application.  The Chief Officer indicated that 
the wording had been discussed with the Local Member, Councillor Owen 
Thomas.    

Councillor Gareth Roberts proposed the recommendation for the 
reasons for refusal of the application, which was duly seconded.  

RESOLVED:

That the reason for refusal, as detailed in the report, be agreed.  

163. GENERAL MATTERS – TO AGREE THE WORDING OF REFUSAL FOR 
PLANNING APPLICATION 053959 – DISPLAY RECYCLING AT UNIT 6, 
ANTELOPE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, RHYDYMWYN (053959)

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Officer (Planning and 
Environment) in respect of this application.  The Chief Officer indicated that 
the wording had been discussed with the Local Member, Councillor Owen 
Thomas.    

Councillor Gareth Roberts proposed the recommendation for the 
reasons for refusal of the application, which was duly seconded.  

RESOLVED:

That the reason, for refusal as detailed in the report, be agreed.  

164. APPEAL BY MR. A. BAXTER AGAINST THE DECISION OF FLINTSHIRE 
COUNTY COUNCIL TO REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR CHANGE 
OF USE FROM OFFICES TO 1 NO. DWELLING AT GLASMOR BACH, PEN 
Y CEFN ROAD, CAERWYS (053884)

RESOLVED:

That the decision of the Inspector to dismiss this appeal be noted.

Page 37



165. APPEAL BY MISS J. HOOD AGAINST THE DECISION OF FLINTSHIRE 
COUNTY COUNCIL TO REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR THE 
OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR THE ERECTION OF 1 NO. DWELLING AT 
24 BOROUGH GROVE, FLINT (052761)

RESOLVED:

That the decision of the Inspector to dismiss this appeal be noted.

166. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were 40 members of the public and 1 member of the press in 
attendance.

(The meeting started at 1.00 pm and ended at 5.36 pm)

…………………………
Chairman

Page 38



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE

DATE: 20TH APRIL 2016

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT)

SUBJECT: FULL APPLICATION – ERECTION OF 33 NO 
APARTMENTS WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING 
AT THE ALBION SOCIAL CLUB, PEN Y LLAN 
CONNAH’S QUAY

APPLICATION 
NUMBER:

054607

APPLICANT: STAR BLUE ASSOCIATES

SITE: ALBION HOTEL, PEN Y LLAN CONNAH’S QUAY

APPLICATION 
VALID DATE:

17.11.15

LOCAL MEMBERS: COUNCILLOR BERNIE ATTRIDGE
COUNCILLOR AARON SHOTTON

TOWN/COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL: CONNAH’S QUAY

REASON FOR 
COMMITTEE:

SCALE OF DEVELOPMENT

SITE VISIT: UNDERTAKEN ON 21ST MARCH

This application was deferred from consideration at Planning and 
Development Control Committee on 23rd March in order for further 
consultations to be undertaken with waste management.  The applicant 
is proposing a private waste collection as the roads are not to adoptable 
standard and the Council’s largest refuse vehicle would not be able to 
enter the site and egress in a forward manoeuvre. 

A meeting has been held with waste management to discuss 
safeguarding the Council’s position if the management company failed 
and we were in a position where we were obliged to collect the refuse 
from the site under our statutory obligations.  A clause has been added 
to the S106 requirement to ensure that the Council can review the 
management agreement to ensure it includes refuse collection.   

Page 39

Agenda Item 6.1



However if this failed then the Council has control over the hard 
surfacing through condition and can ensure that this is constructed to a 
standard that is suitable for refuse vehicles. 

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01 This is a full planning application for 33 apartments with associated 
access and parking, cycle and refuse storage. The proposed scheme 
would create a form of development both in layout and design terms 
which would improve the residential amenity of the existing residents 
and would create an attractive living environment for the proposed 
residents. 

2.00 RECOMMENDATION: TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, 
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:-

2.01 That conditional planning permission be granted subject to the 
applicant entering into a Section 106 Obligation/Unilateral Undertaking 
or earlier payment of monies to provide the following;-

 An off –site commuted sum of £733 per unit in lieu of on-site 
provision to improve the junior play facilities at Central Park, 
Connah’s Quay

 A contribution of £98,056 is required towards educational 
enhancements at Golftyn Primary School

 A commuted sum of £360,000 to facilitate access to affordable 
housing in Connah’s Quay

 Local Planning Authority review terms of the proposed 
management agreement for the apartments in order to ensure 
that it requires private refuse collection.

1. Time Commencement
2. In accordance with plans
3. Details and locations of cycle stands/shelters
4. Details of foul, surface water and land drainage to be submitted
5. Materials
6. Hard and soft landscaping including boundary treatment and 

surfacing of roadways and parking and turning areas
7. Enhanced double glazing for block A for bedroom and living 

room windows facing onto Church Street
8. Scheme for the re-alignment of the access
9. Works to the access to be completed prior to the 

commencement of other works on site
10.Design of access

Page 40



11.Gates to be set back a minimum distance of 5.0m form the 
edge of the existing carriageway

12.Parking and turning facilities to be provided and retained
13.Positive means to prevent surface water run-off onto the 

highway
14.Construction Traffic Management Plan
15.Details of cycling stands/shelters 
16.Travel Plan

If the Obligation pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as outlined above) is not completed within 3 
months of the date of the Committee resolution, the Head of Planning 
be given delegated authority to REFUSE the application.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS

3.01 Local Member
Councillor Bernie Attridge
Requested a site visit and objects to the application on the following 
grounds;

 Car parking spaces - appreciate it is classed as Town Centre 
location but the nearest car park is some distance away so will 
have a detrimental effect to area. 

 Consider the site is still an over development

Councillor Aaron Shotton
No response received at time of writing. 

Connah’s Quay Town Council
Objects on the grounds that it is an inappropriate development and a 
site visit is requested.

Highways Development Control Manager
As a private refuse collection is proposed there is no need within the 
layout to accommodate the Council’s large refuse wagon and the 
provision of turning facilities as shown to accommodate a smaller 
vehicle is acceptable. The changes to the car parking layout are now 
acceptable.  While the provision of 42 spaces is below the maximum 
set out in Local Planning Guidance Note 11 it would appear a 
reasonable number considering the location of the application site 
subject to justification of this level of provision.   

No objection subject to conditions covering;
 Scheme for the re-alignment of the access
 Works to the access to be completed prior to the 

commencement of other works on site
 Design of access

Page 41



 Gates to be set back a minimum distance of 5.0m form the 
edge of the existing carriageway

 Parking and turning facilities to be provided and retained
 Positive means to prevent surface water run-off onto the 

highway
 Construction Traffic Management Plan

Public Protection Manager
No objections in principle, however the noise levels from traffic on 
Church Street are such measures are necessary to protect the 
residents of block A in accordance with the requirements of TAN11: 
Noise.  A condition is recommended to require a scheme of enhanced 
double glazing for block A. 

Welsh Water/Dwr Cymru
No objections subject to standard conditions covering foul, surface 
water and land drainage. 

Natural Resources Wales
No objection.

Clwyd Powys Archaeological Trust
There are no Archaeological implications however the eastern stone 
boundary wall, may be part of the curtilage of the adjacent listed 
church and vicarage and should be preserved within the proposed 
development scheme. 

Head of Play Unit
In accordance with Local Planning Guidance Note No 13 the Council 
should be seeking an off-site contribution of £733 per apartment in 
lieu of on-site public open space.  This would be used to enhance 
existing junior play facilities at Central Park, Connah’s Quay.  

Education
The nearest Primary School to the development is Golftyn County 
Primary School which has 391 children on role and a capacity of 404 
children.  At present it has 3% surplus places.  A development of this 
scale would generate 8 pupils.  As the school has less than 5% 
surplus spaces a contribution of £98,056 is required based on the 
pupil multiplier of £12,257 per pupil. 

The nearest Secondary school is Connahs’ Quay High School which 
has 15% surplus spaces.  A development of this scale would generate 
6 pupils which would not reduce the number of surplus spaces below 
the 5% trigger. A contribution towards secondary provision is therefore 
not required. 

Page 42



Housing Strategy Manager
Consider due to the nature of the scheme as a private apartment 
development that a commuted sum would be the best option.  This 
has been calculated based on an estimated sales value of £120,000.   
30% of £120K =£36K x 10 = £360,000.

4.00 PUBLICITY

4.01 Press Notice, Site Notice and Neighbour Notification
5 objections on the grounds of;

 Enough flats/apartments in this area
 Not enough parking spaces
 Need for pensioners bungalows and town houses
 The height of the buildings would have an impact on the 

privacy of the surrounding properties 
 The development is on a busy road and the access is adjacent 

to a layby which is regularly used by the church and other 
residents.  This restricts the visibility form the access on to a 
busy road. 

  Will lead to on-street parking
 Overlooking of rear gardens 
 Concern more apartments will lead to an increase in crime
 Loss of light
 Over dominance
 Noise
 Impact on the character and appearance of the area
 Pedestrian safety due to increased use of access and traffic

5.00 SITE HISTORY

5.01 053425 - Erection of 36 apartments in 6 three and four storey blocks 
with associated access and car parking Withdrawn 24.09.15

046886 - Erection of a smoking shelter. File closed 29.01.10

Extension to existing sports and social club Approved 03.09.91

6.00 PLANNING POLICIES

6.01 Flintshire Unitary Development Plan 
STR1 - New Development
STR4 - Housing
GEN1 - General Requirements for New Development
GEN2 - Development Inside Settlement Boundaries
D1 - Design Quality, Location and Layout
D2 - Design

Page 43



WB1 - Species Protection
AC13 - Access and Traffic Impact
AC18 - Parking Provision and New Development
HSG3 – Housing on Unallocated within settlement boundaries
HSG8 - Density of Development
HSG10 – Affordable Housing within Settlement Boundaries 
SR5 - Outdoor Play Space and New Residential Development
S11 – Retention of Local Facilities 

Local Planning Guidance Note 2 : Space Around Dwellings
Local Planning Guidance Note 11: Parking spaces
Local Planning Guidance Note 13: Open Space Requirements
Local Planning Guidance Note 23 : Education Contributions 
TAN11: Noise

The application is in accordance with the above policies. 

7.00 PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

Introduction
This is a full planning application for 33 apartments with associated 
access and parking, cycle and refuse storage on 0.28 hectares at the 
Albion Hotel, Church Street, Connah’s Quay. 

Site Description
The application site lies within Connah’s Quay off Church Street.  It is 
bounded to the north west by the residential development on Pen y 
Llan Street which is in the form of terraced housing.  To the north east 
the site is bounded by Osbourne Court which are semi-detached 
houses.  To the east of the site is St. Mary’s Church and The Vicarage 
which are both Grade II Listed buildings.  To the south of the site are 
detached residential properties. 

The site is currently occupied by the Albion Hotel which is a large two 
storey building occupying the south west of the site and abuts the 
existing residential properties on Pen y Llan Street. The hotel has 
been extended with two storey hotel accommodation forming the north 
western boundary with the alley way between the rear yards of Pen y 
Llan Street and the site boundary.  The remainder of the site is car 
parking.  

Proposed Development
It is proposed to provide 33 two bedroom apartments.  These are 
within five separate blocks of two and a half storeys.  It is proposed to 
provide 33 resident car parking spaces and 9 visitor spaces with 
amenity areas, cycle shelters and refuse store. The proposed 
apartments are red brick with a slate roof.  The refuse store is 

Page 44



7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

5.8metres by 4.5metres and would be a brick building with a pitched 
tiled roof and wooden doors.

Issues
The main issues are the scale and nature of the development, impact 
on residential amenity and highways impacts. 

Principle of development
The site is situated within Connah’s Quay which is a town and 
designated as a Category A settlement within the Flintshire Unitary 
Development Plan. The site was formerly used as a hotel and social 
club which is now vacant.  The loss of this facility under policy S11 is 
accepted as the site is within a town centre with other such facilities.

The site is a brownfield site located in a sustainable location and 
therefore is in accordance with the principle of Planning Policy Wales 
Edition 8 2016.   The application site is also surrounded by residential 
properties and it is considered that a residential use would be more 
appropriate in this location. 

Scale and nature of the development and impact on residential 
amenity
The surrounding area is a variety of types ranging from traditional two 
storey terraced housing and semi-detached properties to three storey 
block of flats.  To the south east of the site is St. Mary’s Church and 
graveyard and the adjacent vicarage, which is a large two storey 
house and outbuildings in its own grounds.  The proposed 
development is of traditional design with the use of bricks and slate 
with cill features and traditional gables in the roof.  The design of the 
building has taken features from the traditional properties in the area. 

This application is a resubmission of application 053425 for 36 
apartments which was withdrawn following concerns raised over the 
number of units and the form of development.  The proposed scheme 
has evolved through detailed discussions with the agent to reduce the 
massing of the development from the initial three and four storey 
blocks.  The siting of the apartment blocks has also been carefully 
considered both in terms of the impact on the existing surrounding 
properties and to create an attractive living environment for the 
proposed occupiers. 

In terms of the density of the scheme, the site is 0.28 hectares so 33 
apartments equates to 117 dwellings per hectare.  This is a high 
density scheme however it is within an urban area where it is 
considered to be acceptable subject to the form and design of the 
development.

Page 45



7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

Block A provides some frontage development and adds to the street 
scene by continuing the building line along Church Street.  Blocks B, 
and E have been orientated with the principle elevations and living 
areas facing the communal parking areas to provide natural 
surveillance with bedrooms at the rear facing the existing residential 
properties and a more private aspect.  Blocks C and D have been 
sited to overlook the amenity space which is bounded by the existing 
stone/brick wall of the grounds of the Vicarage.  The blocks have been 
located to minimise the impact on the existing residential properties by 
removing all built development from the north western boundary and 
also respecting the Listed buildings to the south east. 

The side elevations of blocks B and E face Pen y Llan Street and are 
approximately 12 metres from the habitable rooms in the nearest 
properties.  The current accommodation for the Albion Hotel is 
situated on the boundary with the alley way separating the site with 
the rear gardens of Pen y Llan Street.  The existing accommodation is 
10 metres from the habitable rooms of the existing buildings and has 
habitable rooms which directly overlooks the existing properties.  The 
proposed block therefore greatly improves the residential amenity of 
these residents by moving the built form further away from the existing 
properties and removing any overlooking.  Block C within the centre of 
the site has habitable rooms overlooking Pen y Llan Street but these 
have separation distances of 22 metres from any habitable rooms.  It 
is therefore considered that the proposed scheme accords with Local 
Planning Guidance Note 2: Space Around Dwellings. 

The scheme also provides for a refuse store which located within the 
site adjacent to the north west boundary.  This would be a physical 
structure with the bins located within it to reduce any adverse impacts 
form odour or litter. The location and details of the cycle 
stands/shelters would be agreed by condition.  

Affordable Housing
Housing Strategy have considered the housing need in Connah’s 
Quay and consider due to the nature of the scheme as a private 
apartment development that a commuted sum would be the best 
option.  This could be invested into the SHARP programme which has 
three identified schemes in Connah’s Quay and/or to assist facilitating 
access to affordable housing through other mechanisms such as 
deposit assistance

This has been calculated based on an estimated sales value of 
£120,000.  If the dwellings were sold at 70% discount market value it 
was the 30% reduction based on £120,000 =£36,000 x 10 = 
£360,000.  The applicant is agreeable to this. 

Page 46



7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Access
The site currently has a use as a hotel and social club with 40 car 
parking spaces and has the potential to be used for another use within 
the same Use Class for hotels (C1) or social club (A3) which would 
generate similar vehicle’s movements.  

The proposed access would provide a pedestrian crossing point and 
would have gates set back within the site to allow vehicles to pull in 
clear of the carriageway.  Sufficient manoeuvring space is provided 
within the site for delivery vehicles to turn and to avoid reversing out 
onto the highway. 

Highways raise no objections to the proposed use subject to 
conditions covering access and parking details and a construction 
traffic management plan. 

Parking
The proposal has 33 spaces with one for each apartment and 9 visitor 
spaces.  The level of car parking is below the maximum parking 
standards set out in Local Planning Guidance Note 11 which requires 
1.5 spaces for apartments. This would equate to 50 spaces as 
opposed to the 42 proposed.  However this is justified as the site is 
located within Connah’s Quay which is a main settlement within the 
Flintshire Unitary Development Plan.  The nearest bus stop is within 
100 metres of the site entrance near to the former Swan Inn.  There is 
also access to the rail network from Shotton Station which is 
approximately 2km away and is accessible by public transport. 

S106 Contributions and CIL Compliance

7.21

The infrastructure and monetary contributions that can be required 
from the Proposals have to be assessed under the Regulation 122 of 
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 and Welsh 
Office Circular 13/97 ‘Planning Obligations’. It is unlawful for a 
planning obligation to be taken into account when determining a 
planning application for a development, or any part of a development, 
if the obligation does not meet all of the following Regulation 122 
tests:
1. be necessary to make the development acceptable in planning

terms;
2. be directly related to the development; and
3. be fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 

development.

An off –site commuted sum of £733 per unit in lieu of on-site provision 
to improve the junior play facilities at River View, Connah’s Quay is 
required.  This is in accordance with Local Planning Guidance Note 
13: Open Space Requirements which requires off site open space 

Page 47



7.22

7.23

7.24

contributions where on site provision is not possible.   There have not 
been 5 contributions towards this project to date. 

A contribution of £98,056 is required towards educational 
enhancements at Golftyn Primary School.  This is in accordance with 
Local Planning Guidance Note 23: Education Contributions.  There 
have not been 5 contributions towards this project to date. 

A commuted sum of £360,000 to facilitate affordable housing is 
requested.  This is in accordance with Local Planning Guidance Note 
9: Affordable Housing. 

It is considered that all of these contributions meet the Regulation 122 
tests.

8.00 CONCLUSION

8.01

8.02

The proposed scheme would create a form of development both in 
layout and design terms which would improve the residential amenity 
of the existing residents and would create an attractive living 
environment for the proposed residents. 

In considering this planning application the Council has acted in 
accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998 including Article 8 of the 
Convention and in a manner which is necessary in a democratic 
society in furtherance of the legitimate aims of the Act and the 
Convention, and has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under the Equality Act 2010.

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy
Responses to Consultation
Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Emma Hancock
Telephone: (01352) 703254
Email: emma.hancock@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 48



CEFN ROAD

P
E
N

 Y
 L

LA
N

 S
TR

E
E
T

NEW
 UNIO

N STREET

R
O

C
K
 R

D

OSBOURNE COURT

C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
O

A
D

B
R

Y
N

 C
A

E
 P

LA
C

E

CHURCH STREET

P
os

ts

St Mark's

14

2

1

TCB

16

Hall

Church

5

Lodge

Fairfield

19

1

12

El Sub Sta

2

3

4

1

Gate

24

22

2

Lych

36

52

11

50

29

20

24

2

4
6

The Vicarage

20

27

A
lb

io
n

H
ot

el

8

35

25

60

1 to 9

Cedar Court

Holly Court

1 to
 6

Fern Court

1

7 to
 1

2

Chestnut Court

10
 to

 1
7

1 to
 9

2

15

7

2
C

ou
rt

1
3

1

E
liz

ab
et

h4

29

6

5

Ivy Court

7 to
 13

7 to
 1

4

15 to
 2

2

1 to
 9

10 to
 1

5

1 to
 6

84

7 to
 1

2

78

70

W
illow Court

Shelter

4

1

6

2

1

14

8
7

Birch Court

11

13

19

17

1 to
 6

Swan Inn

(PH)

14

15

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer:  Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2016.

Location Plan      Scale 1:50,000   

Map Scale

OS Map ref

Planning Application

1:1250

SJ 2969

054607

Application Site

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan
Settlement Boundary

Planning Application Site

Legend

ééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééé
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

CONNAH'S QUAY

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE

DATE: 20TH APRIL 2016

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT)

SUBJECT: CHANGE OF USE OF VACANT POLICE HOUSE 
(FORMERLY A DWELLING) INTO A 9 BEDROOM 
HMO AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS 
IMPROVEMENTS AT 63 HIGH STREET, SALTNEY

APPLICATION 
NUMBER:

054886

APPLICANT: MR RICHARD HILL

SITE: 63 HIGH STREET, SALTNEY

APPLICATION 
VALID DATE:

05.02.16

LOCAL MEMBERS: COUNCILLOR V GAY

TOWN/COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL:

SALTNEY 

REASON FOR 
COMMITTEE:

LOCAL MEMBER REQUEST

SITE VISIT: YES

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01 This is a full planning application for the change of use of the former 
police house from a dwelling to a house of multiple occupation 
containing 9 bedrooms with extensions and alterations and an 
additional vehicle access point at 63 High Street, Saltney. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6.2



2.00 RECOMMENDATION: TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, 
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:-

2.01 1. Time commencement
2. Plans
3. Existing gates fronting the eastern parking facilities to be 

removed prior to the its occupation
4. Highway boundary means of enclosure across the frontage of 

the site shall be reduced to and not exceed a height of 600mm
5. The return boundary walls for a distance of 1.0 m into the site 

from the highway edge shall be reduced to and not exceed a 
height of 600mm 

6. Any planting within a 1.0 m wide strip to the rear of the highway 
boundary across the frontage of the site shall be reduced to 
and not exceed 600mm

7. Parking facilities shall be provided and retained prior to the 
commencement of the use 

8. Details of cycle storage and bin storage 
9. Materials for extension
10.Hard and soft landscaping and boundary treatments

3.00 CONSULTATIONS

3.01 Local Member
Councillor V Gay
Requests a committee site visit and committee determination due to 
highways concerns. Preliminary views are have concerns regarding 
highways restrictions and traffic flow issues. 

Adjoining Ward Member 
Councillor R Lloyd 
Requests a committee site visit and committee determination as 
would not be in keeping with the area and the new access onto the 
High Street would not be safe due to the bus stop and entrance to 
Oddfellows Hall next door.  Also parking on the road would add to an 
increase in queuing traffic through Saltney with a doctors surgery and 
school in close proximity.  The waste disposal of 9 wheelie bins and 
recycling materials would block it completely. 

Saltney Town Council
No response received at time of writing. 

Highways Development Control Manager 
Within the maximum parking standards, there is no specific category 
in the LPGN for a House of Multiple Occupation.  It is noted that there 
is a Bus Stop outside the site and it is within close proximity to shops / 
employment opportunities in Saltney and Chester city Centre is within 
cycling distance.  It is therefore considered that the site to is in a 
sustainable location and a reason for refusal cannot be reasonably 
justified on the basis of a lack of parking provision.

Page 52



No objection subject to conditions relating to;
 Existing gates fronting the eastern parking facilities to be 

removed prior to the its occupation
 Highway boundary means of enclosure across the frontage of 

the site shall be reduced to and not exceed a height of 600mm
 The return boundary walls for a distance of 1.0 m into the site 

form the highway edge shall be reduced to and not exceed a 
height of 600mm 

 Any planting within a 1.0 m wide strip to the rear of the highway 
boundary across the frontage of the site shall be reduced to 
and not exceed 600mm

 Parking facilities shall be provided and retained prior to the 
commencement of the use 

Head of Public Protection
No objections.  The relevant licences will need to be applied for. 

4.00 PUBLICITY

4.01 Site Notice and Neighbour Notification
7 objections on the grounds of;

 Potential for 18 cars to be generated plus visitors
 No parking on the High Street
 Access issues reversing onto the High Street blocks the traffic 

flow
 Entrance is onto a bus stop
 Pavement would be blocked from wheelie bins
 Use is not in keeping with the area
 Insufficient parking
 Increase in noise due to intensification of use 
 Hours of operation 
 Concern over duty of care to children depending on occupancy 

of building
 Anti-social behaviour 
 Poor visibility from access points
 Impact on residential amenity of adjacent properties 

5.00 SITE HISTORY

5.01 None.

Page 53



6.00 PLANNING POLICIES

6.01 Flintshire Unitary Development Plan 
STR1 - New Development
STR4 - Housing
GEN1 - General Requirements for Development
GEN2 - Development inside settlement boundaries
AC13 - Access and Traffic impact
AC18 - Parking Provision and new development 
HSG3 - Housing on unallocated sites within Settlement boundaries
HSG12 - House Extensions and Alterations 
EWP13 - Nuisance  

The proposal would be in accordance with the above policies. 

7.00 PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

Introduction
This is a full planning application for the change of use of the former 
police house from a dwelling to a house of multiple occupation 
containing 9 bedrooms with extensions and alterations and an 
additional vehicle access point at 63 High Street, Saltney. 

Site description
The building is a former dwelling and is located at 63 High Street, 
Saltney.  The building is located directly on the High Street and is 
bounded to the east by residential properties.  To the south of the site 
are the grounds of St. Anthony’s Catholic Primary School and to the 
west of the site is the Oddfellows Hall.   Opposite the site are 
residential properties and St.Anthony’s Church. 

The building is two storey in nature and has existing parking spaces to 
the east and an area of hardstanding and a garden area to the west. 
The built form of the building extends close to the boundary with the 
school grounds to the south.  

Proposal 
It is proposed to convert and extend the former dwelling to a 9 
bedroom house of multiple occupation (HMO).  This would comprise 6 
rooms with ensuite bathrooms and 3 further bedrooms sharing 1 
bathroom over both the ground and first floor.  There would be a 
communal open plan kitchen, dining and living room area on the 
ground floor. This would involve the replacement of the existing 
conservatory to the rear with a two storey extension to provide an 
additional bedroom on the first floor and the replacement of a flat roof 
over the current garage/store with a pitched roof at single storey. 

There are  2 existing car parking spaces to the east of the building 
and a further parking area for 2 cars would be provided to the west of 
the building with a new dropped kerb and vehicle access onto the 

Page 54



7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

High Street.  A communal lawn area would be provided to the rear 
with cycle storage and bin storage. 

Issues
The main issues relate to the intensification of the residential use and 
the impacts related to noise and disturbance and parking and access 
issues. 

Access
The proposal uses the existing driveway to the dwelling which 
provides two parking spaces and proposes to create an additional 
access point with a further two parking spaces.  Both access points 
would require reversing onto the High Street. 

The Highways Development Control Manager has no objections to the 
intended use of the existing or proposed points of access. There is no 
conflict with the siting of the proposed access and the existing bus 
stop. 

Parking
Four parking spaces are provided with two on the existing driveway to 
the dwelling and an additional access point is proposed with a further 
two parking spaces.  There are no parking standards within Local 
Planning Guidance Note 11 for Houses of Multiple Occupation.  Each 
one is dealt with on its own merits depending on its individual set of 
locational circumstances.

This property is located within the centre of Saltney town centre.  
Saltney is a Category B settlement within the UDP and offers a range 
of facilities.   There is a bus stop directly outside the property with 
regular services to Chester and into Flintshire towns.  The settlement 
offers a wide range of local amenities within the Central Trading Park 
across the road and a supermarket and other high street 
conveniences in walking distance.  The layout also makes provision 
for a cycle store.  It is therefore considered given its sustainable 
location that 4 car parking spaces is sufficient in these circumstances. 

Impact on residential amenity and the school
The occupancy of the units and the nature of the tenure is not a 
material planning consideration.  The property is a five bedroom 
dwelling and could be used as a dwelling without planning permission.  
A nine bed room HMO would be an intensification of the residential 
use in terms of the movement associated with the occupants of the 
dwelling and the associated noise and disturbance, however this 
would not be significantly different form a large family occupying the 
dwelling. 

There are no windows in the property which directly overlook the 
school playing fields or the adjacent residential properties in either the 
existing dwelling or the proposed extensions.  Appropriate boundary 

Page 55



treatment around the curtilage of the property can adequately screen 
the communal amenity areas to provide privacy for the occupants and 
the neighbouring properties. This can be controlled by condition. 

8.00 CONCLUSION

8.01

8.02

It is considered that the proposed access and parking arrangements 
are acceptable given the proposal is in a sustainable location within 
Saltney. 

In considering this planning application the Council has acted in 
accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998 including Article 8 of the 
Convention and in a manner which is necessary in a democratic 
society in furtherance of the legitimate aims of the Act and the 
Convention, and has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under the Equality Act 2010.

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy
Responses to Consultation
Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Emma Hancock
Telephone: (01352) 703254
Email: emma.hancock@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 56



MARLEY WAY

HIGH STREET

C
H

A
IN

 M
A

K
E

R
'S

 R
O

W

Drain

SCHOLARS C
LOSE

Drain

St Anthony's

Catholic

18

6

1
2

47

4

Garage

52

43

2

38

41

12

Station

54
S

t A
n
th

o
n
y
's C

h
u
rch

64

LB

12A

10

13

Police

63

53

Church

6

74

84

Trading
Park

86

Central

12

2

7
4

24

45

Hall

Primary School

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer:  Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2016.

Location Plan      Scale 1:50,000   

Map Scale

OS Map ref

Planning Application

1:1250

SJ 3865

54886

Application Site

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan
Settlement Boundary

Planning Application Site

Legend

ééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééé
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

SALTNEY

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE

DATE: 20TH APRIL 2016

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT)

SUBJECT: FULL APPLICATION – ERECTION OF 14 NO. SEMI-
DETACHED HOUSES, 2 NO. SEMI-DETACHED 
BUNGALOWS 6 TERRACED PROPERTIES AND 1 
NO. SPECIAL NEEDS BUNGALOW TOGETHER 
WITH ACCESS ROAD AND PARKING AT LAND 
OFF COED ONN ROAD, FLINT.

APPLICATION 
NUMBER:

053662

APPLICANT: ANWYL CONSTRUCTION CO LTD

SITE: LAND OFF COED ONN ROAD,
FLINT.

APPLICATION 
VALID DATE:

2ND JUNE 2015

LOCAL MEMBERS: COUNCILLOR V. PERFECT
COUNCILLOR P. CUNNINGHAM

TOWN/COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL:

FLINT TOWN COUNCIL

REASON FOR  
COMMITTEE:

THE SCALE OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
REQUIRES COMMITTEE DETERMINATION

SITE VISIT: NO

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01 This full application relates to the erection of 14 no. semi-detached 
houses 2 no. semi-detached bungalows, 1 no. special needs 
bungalow and 6 no. terraced properties, together with the access road 
and parking on land off Coed Onn Road, Flint Flintshire.

Page 59

Agenda Item 6.3



2.00

2.01

RECOMMENDATION: TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, 
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:-

That conditional permission be granted subject to the applicant 
entering into a section 106 Agreement, providing a unilateral 
undertaking or the making of an advanced payment which provides for 
the following:-   

Ensure the payment of a contribution of £733 per dwelling (£16859) in 
lieu of on-site play and recreation facilities, to upgrade the existing 
children’s play at Oakenholt 

 Conditions 

1. Time limit on commencement.
2. In accord with approved plans.
3. No works to commence until scheme for re-alignment of Coed 

Onn Road/Croes Atti Link Road has been submitted and 
approved.

4. No works associated with development to commence unless 
works identified in condition 3 have been completed.

5. Siting, layout and design of access to be submitted and agreed 
prior to commencement.

6. Formation of access not commence unless detailed design has 
been approved.

7. Access shall be Kerbed and completed to base layer prior to 
any other site building works.

8. Proposed access onto Coed Onn Road, shall have visibility 
splays of 2.4mx 43m

9. Visibility splays to be maintained during construction works.
10. Plot access to be in accordance with standard details.
11. Traffic calming and signage to be submitted and agreed.
12. Parking to be provided and maintained.
13. Gradient to access shall be 1 in 24 for 10 m and maximum 1 in 

15 thereafter.
14. Positive means to prevent run-off of surface water to be 

agreed.
15. Construction management plan to be submitted and agreed.
16. Traffic management Plan
17. Materials to be agreed.
18. Landscaping to be submitted and agreed to include a less 

formal management around stream and SSSI buffer.
19. Landscaping to be undertaken.
20.      Reasonable avoidance measures
21       Protective fencing around retained trees and hedges.
22.    Arboricultural Method Statement to safeguard trees and 

hedges.

Page 60



23. Details of stepped timber retaining structure to be submitted 
and agreed.

24   Biosecurity Risk Assessment to the satisfaction of Local 
Planning Authority.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS

3.01 Local Member 
Councillor V. Perfect
No response at time of writing.

Councillor P. Cunningham 
No objection.

Adjoining Ward Member 
Councillor R. Johnson
As adjoining ward member objects to the proposal on grounds of 
being against policy. Applicant had permission for a mixed 
development, not to pass land on to Housing Association, which is not 
needed due to all the new building going to take place on the former 
maisonette site. Once a permission is given it should be adhered to 
not changed to suit the developer. Affordable housing was to be 
pepper-potted around the site not lumped together.

Flint Town Council
No objections to make regarding the planning application.

Head of Assets and Transportation
No objections requests the imposition of conditions and notes upon 
any subsequent permission. The conditions requested relate to details 
being provided and agreed for the improvement of the Coed Onn 
Road/Croes Atti Link Road being submitted and undertaken including 
access into the site. The conditions relate to:-

 Access to be completed to base course layer up to internal 
tangent

 Visibility splay onto Coed Onn Road shall be provided and 
retained.

 Access to plots in accordance with standard details.

 Facilities to be provided and maintained for parking on each 
plot

 Detailed layout, design, means of traffic calming and signing, 
surface water drainage, street lighting and construction of 
estate roads to be submitted and approved.

Page 61



 Access gradient. 

 Positive means to prevent surface water runoff.

 No works to commence until traffic management plan 
submitted and approved.

An amended plan has recently been submitted, now showing the 
access onto Coed Onn Road and the Croes Atti link being included 
within the application site. The Highway Engineer has been 
reconsulted has no additional comments other than those previously 
made.

Pollution Control Manager
Confirms that has no objection to the proposal and does not wish to 
make any additional recommendations.

Wales and West Utilities
Has no objection to the proposal however apparatus may be at risk 
during construction works and should the application be approved 
then the applicant should contact Wales and West to discuss their 
requirements.

Natural Resources Wales
Based on the information provided to date NRW does not object to the 
proposed development. We have the following comments regarding 
protected sites and protected species-: Ecology Protected Species.  
We note the updated ecology report (Ecological Design Consultants, 
October 2015). NRW consider the assessment is respect of protected 
species to be satisfactory.

NRW recommend that the recommendations within report are 
conditioned as part of any permission granted.  The implementation of 
Reasonable Avoidance Measures (RAMS) is recommended to ensure 
the favourable conservation status of the species is maintained.

Protected Sites
We note that the protected Mynydd y Fflint SSSI site borders the 
proposed development for approximately 70m along a stream. From 
the information provided the tree and hedges that border the site are 
to remain intact in order to maintain a buffer between the proposed 
development site and the SSSI boundary. This boundary should be 
retained and not impinged upon by the proposed development. 

The recommendations within the report should be conditioned as part 
of any permission granted in order that the hydrology of the site is not 
impacted on by the proposed development.

Page 62



Biosecurity
We consider biosecurity to be a material consideration owing to the 
nature and location of the proposal In this case, biosecurity issues 
concern invasive non-native species (INNS) and diseases. We 
therefore advise that any consent includes the imposition of a 
condition requiring the submission and implementation of a 
Biosecurity Risk Assessment to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority.

The Coal Authority
Objected to the proposal in its original form until such time that the 
applicant can demonstrate that no significant risk to the development 
is posed by the recorded mine entry and that it can be demonstrated 
that the application site is, or can be made, safe and stable for the 
proposed development. 

The applicant has recently submitted a mineshaft investigation report 
on 26th November and this has been sent to the Coal Authority for 
comments.  Further information has now been submitted and The 
Coal Authority is satisfied with the conclusions of the Mineshaft 
Investigation Report, informed by the site investigation works; that 
coal mining legacy issues are not significant within the application site 
and do not pose a risk to the proposed development.  Accordingly, 
The Coal Authority withdraws its objection to the proposed 
development.

Liverpool Bay Operations
No comments to make on the proposal.

Public Open Space Manager
Advises that a sum of £733 per dwelling be sought in lieu of on-site 
play provision. (£16,859 total) The infrastructure and monetary 
contributions that can be required from a planning application through 
a S.106 agreement have to be assessed under Regulation 122 of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 and Welsh 
Office Circular 13/97 ‘Planning Obligations’.

It is unlawful for a planning obligation to be taken into account when 
determining a planning application for a development, or any part of a 
development, if the obligation does not meet all of the following 
Regulation 122 tests;

1. be necessary to make the development acceptable in         
planning terms;

2. be directly related to the development; and
3. be fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 

development.

Whilst the Authority does not yet have a charging schedule in place, 
the CIL Regulations puts limitations on the use of planning obligations. 

Page 63



These limitations restrict the number of obligations for the funding or 
provision of an infrastructure project/type of infrastructure. From April 
2015 if there have been 5 or more S.106 obligations relating to an 
infrastructure project/type of infrastructure since 2010 then no further 
obligations for that infrastructure project/type of infrastructure can be 
considered in determining an application.

The consultation has established that the sum requested should be 
used in connection with a project to upgrade facilities at the nearby 
Albert Avenue, play Area. In accordance with the requirements of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (CIL) 2010, this sum, 
when pooled would not exceed 5 contributions towards a single 
project.

NOTE: I am satisfied, on the application of the tests set out in S.122 of 
the CIL Regulations and as detailed above, that such a contribution 
would satisfy these requirements. I am also satisfied that the sum is 
sought for a specific identified project and as such, would not be 
caught by the S.123 prohibition with the CIL Regulations.

Drainage Section
Requires further information on the drainage design. Information has 
now been submitted and passed to the relevant section and is 
presently under consideration. Additional information has now been 
submitted and the information is now considered acceptable.

4.00 PUBLICITY

4.01

4.02

The proposed development has been the subject of a wide level of 
consultation. The application has been publicised by means of site 
notices (twice, following the representation at the last committee), 
press notice and neighbour notification letters.

At the time of writing six letters of objection has been received the 
objections refer to:-

 Retain ecology of area existing hedgerow to path affords a 
good screen and habitat.

 Highway implications/road safety.
 If built will lead onto Anwyls site at Croes Atti 
 Design brief expects affordable properties should be spread out 

through the whole of the development and not concentrated in 
one area.

 Development brief for Croes Atti set parameters with 10% 
affordable housing expected to be pepper potted throughout 
the whole site, not in one area.

 Creates an enclave of 23 dwellings of one type resident thus 
serious departure from approved principles for estate.

 Estate presented as one to enable families to enter the house 
owning market this application fails to achieve this objective

Page 64



 Site great distance from public transport links.
 Entrances onto Coed Onn Road are debatable, proximity to 

bend and junction.
 Design Access Statement just cut paste exercise, and EIA is 

old.
 Croes Atti site was never intended for such housing
 This application should be re assed as new application should 

provide the requisite 30% affordable housing.
 Development does not follow the Poundsbury principle which 

expects integration to be spread out throughout whole site such 
separation fails to meet this criteria

 Past reports often note tenants will probably not own cars, site 
located away from bus route and over mile from another.

 Highway danger
 EIA outdated 
 Change in ground levels could potentially affect the hydrology 

of the site.
 No mention on plans regarding junction into the field opposite 

to indicate the estates link road to A548. Phase 3 section 106 
required remainder of the estate link road to/from Coed Onn 
Road/A548 Object to this omission to not implementing an 
important element of phase 3 approval.

 EIA is dated 2003 other documents are dated.
 Croes Atti estate portrayed as of exemplary design, no links 

with Cwn Eithin and existing estates estate will become socially 
separated. 23 social housing units flies in face of design brief 
will create social enclave

5.00 SITE HISTORY

5.01 98/17/1308
Outline residential development and associated recreational, 
community and retail was originally reported to committee on 14.12.99
which resolved to approve subject to a Section 106 Agreement – No 
decision was ever issued due to changed circumstances of the 
applicants.

035575
Outline application for a mixed use development including residential, 
open space, infrastructure, landscaping, education and community 
facilities was reported to committee on 19.7.2004 which resolved to 
approve subject to a Section 106 Agreement -the agreement was 
signed and the permission issued on 11th July 2006.

044033
Reserved matters application -residential development consisting of 
189 no. dwellings, public open space, new roundabout and all 
associated works at Croes Atti, Oakenholt -Granted on 11th July 2008.

Page 65



044035
Highway improvements, street lighting and all associated works, on 
land at Croes Atti, Chester Road, Oakenholt, in connection with the 
outline planning permission ( ref. 035575) -Granted permission on 23rd 
April 2008.

046562
Substitution of house types on plots 119, 124, 128-129, 131-132, 136, 
138, 139, 142-144, 146-150, 160-163, 165-166, 170-177 and 183 on 
land at Croes Atti, Oakenholt, granted on 11th  July 2008.

046595
Reserved matters application for residential development consisting 
132 no. dwellings, new roads, open space and all associated works 
on land at Croes Atti, Chester Road, Oakenholt, granted on 19th 
January 2012.

049154
Application for variation of condition no.3 attached to outline planning 
permission ref: 035575 to allow 7 years for the submission of reserved 
matters from the date of the outline planning permission being granted 
rather than the 5 years previously permitted – appeal submitted for 
non-determination, this was considered by way of a public inquiry on 
21st/22nd August 2012 –the appeal was allowed and the planning 
permission was varied to allow 7 years for the submission of reserved 
matters.

049312
Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for construction of 
vehicular access from Prince of Wales Avenue, Flint to serve 
residential development at Croes Atti, Oakenholt, permitted by outline 
planning permission code number 035575 dated 11th July 2006 – 
granted on 5th April 2012.

049426
Application for variation of condition no.3 attached to outline planning 
permission ref: 035575 to allow 7 years for the submission of reserved 
matters from the date of the outline planning permission being granted 
rather than the 5 years previously permitted – resolved to grant 
planning permission at Committee on 25th July, 2012 subject to 
completion of S.106 Obligation.

050258
Proposed house type substitutions and amendments to plots 62, 62a, 
63, 65-70, 72-74, 74a, 75-93, 95-103, 106-108, 110-112, 112a, 113, 
116-118 and one additional plot to that approved at Croes Atti, 
Chester Road, Oakenholt. – still under consideration.

Page 66



050300
Reserved matter application for the erection of 306 dwellings new 
dwellings open space- granted April 2013

Applications relating to the revision to house types on various parts of 
the site have been submitted following the last of the above 
applications.

6.00 PLANNING POLICIES

6.01 Flintshire Unitary Development Plan 
Policy STR1 – New Development.
Policy GEN1 – General Requirements for Development.
Policy GEN2 – Development inside Settlement Boundaries.
Policy HSG3 – Housing upon Unallocated Sites within Settlement
Boundaries.
Policy HSG2 – Housing at Croes Atti, Flint.
Policy HSG8 – Density of Development.
Policy HSG9 – Housing Type and Mix.
Policy D1 – Design Quality, Location and Layout.
Policy D2 – Design.
Policy AC13 – Access and Traffic Impacts.
Policy AC18 – Parking Provision and New Development.
Policy SR5 – Outdoor Playing Space and New Residential 
development

7.00 PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.01

7.02

Principle of Development
This full planning application application proposes the erection of 23 
dwellings consisting of 14 semidetached dwellings, 2 no 
semidetached bungalows and one special needs bungalow, together 
with access road and parking areas on land off Coed Onn Road, Flint. 
The current site measures 0.92 hectare and is an area of land that 
originally formed part of the third reserved matters application to be 
submitted following the granting of the outline planning permission for 
the whole site in 1996, as amended by an appeal into non 
determination of planning permission.

The proposal itself forms part of an overall site of 27 hectares which 
was granted outline planning permission for a mixed use development 
scheme comprising residential development, public open space, 
infrastructure works, landscaping and education and community 
facilities.

Page 67



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

The present full planning application has been submitted following on 
from the granting of the last reserved matters application for the larger 
site under reference 050300. Given this the principle of residential 
development on this part of the site has therefore been established 
under the previous outline and reserved matters permission.

As noted this area of land originally formed part of a much larger 
development which was granted under planning permission reference 
050300. The original permission showed the provision of 23 dwelling 
consisting of 10 pairs semi-detached dwelling and 2 apartments and 
one bungalow giving a total of 23 dwellings on the site. The present 
application proposes the erection of 14 semi-detached dwellings, 2 no 
semi-detached bungalows and 1 no special needs bungalow and two 
terraces of three giving a total of 23 dwellings. The proposal  though 
now forming a full planning application results in the same number of 
dwellings, hence the principle and the number of dwellings have 
already been accepted 

Impact on Residential Amenity
The proposed development is bordered by existing residential 
development to the north west boundary of the site and the previously 
approved area off residential development approved, with open 
countryside forming part of the overall site to the southern boundary. 
The layout shown and the house types proposed allow for space 
about dwellings which are considered not to be detrimental to 
amenities of the existing dwellings by way of overlooking or physical 
proximity.

The proposed development is considered to provide adequate private 
amenity space in addition to space about dwellings, whilst at the same
time benefiting from formal and informal public open spaces which 
forms part of this phase of the development and that previously 
approved.

Design and Appearance
The proposed scheme is designed to link into the proposed new 
distributor road which is to serve the overall site. The density and 
character of proposed properties within the site vary in design from 
two storey terraces, semi-detached and detached dwellings. The 
proposed dwellings as amended are considered sympathetic to 
existing development. 

Provision of Public Open Space
The overall site will benefit from a previously approved formally laid 
out "village green" which includes a mini soccer pitch, a junior play 
area, a toddlers/picnic area, a Multi-Use Games Area (MUGA) which 
forms part of the wider open space allocation for the overall site. The 
original submission on the site showed a door step play area which no 
longer forms part of the present proposal, hence a sum of £733 per 

Page 68



7.09

7.10

7.11

dwelling is sought in lieu of on-site play provision. The 
recommendation is therefore subject to completion of a S106 
Obligation or earlier payment of a sum of £16,859.

Affordable Housing
The original outline planning permission for the overall site Croes Atti 
site required that a minimum of 10% of dwellings on the site should be 
social/affordable and this was secured via a Section 106 legal 
agreement. The exact location of affordable units within the overall 
development has yet to be determined, although on phases 1 and part 
of phase 2 these are being pepper potted across the site, however, 
the final figure will have to be in accordance with the terms of the 
Section 106 legal agreement. The present site is being built on behalf 
of a social landlord hence the final figure will be 100% social. An 
objection has been received regarding this aspect and the provision of 
additional affordable/social housing, however the minimum was 10% 
the provision of an additional 20 units above those originally proposed 
is an improvement on the original submission.

Drainage Issues
NRW and the drainage section have been consulted and have not 
objected to the proposal. At the time of writing works have been 
undertaken to off-site sewer works which include improvements to a 
pumping station which caters for the Croes Atti development overall in 
addition to improving drainage in the area. 

Highways Issues
The highway engineer has been consulted on the application and 
raises no objections subject to the imposition of condition which are 
outlined above.  Part of the original permission granted for the larger 
site which this forms was for the junction of Coed Onn Road and the 
Croes Atti junction be built/improved before phase 3 of the 
development starts. Given this part of the site originally formed part of  
phase three the conditions imposed reflect this need to improve this 
junction prior to works commencing on site. 

8.00 CONCLUSION

8.01

8.02

The proposed development in broad terms would allow for the 
replacement of existing dwellings approved on the land with amended 
house styles and is therefore acceptable in principle, in design terms 
and other matters of detail.

In considering this planning application the Council has acted in 
accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998 including Article 8 of the 
Convention and in a manner which is necessary in a democratic 
society in furtherance of the legitimate aims of the Act and the 
Convention, and has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under the Equality Act 2010. 

Page 69



LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy
Responses to Consultation
Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Karl Slater
Telephone: (01352) 703259
Email: karl.slater@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 70



C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

Pat
h 

(u
m

)

A
B

E
R

 LA
S

MOEL PARC

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

Playing Field

BODLONDEB

M
O

E
L
 P

A
R

C

CWM EITHION

F
F

O
R

D
D

 Y
 F

R
A

N

S
W

N
-Y

-G
W

Y
N

T

R
H

O
S

W
E

N

G
AR

TH
 G

AN
O

L

G
L
A

N
 G

O
R

S

H
E

O
L
-Y

-

BRYN DERW

BRYN

C
A
E
 B

Y
C

H
A
N

P
W

LL
 Y

 H
W

Y
A
D

E
N

BRYN

Play Area

GWYN

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N

BRYN HELIG

9

1

11

1
4

15

3

8

10

2

1

1

1

Ty-coch

TheB
ry

n
 A

w
e
lo

n

1

1
6

1

14

11
0

8

7

1
3
0

1

2

2

1

2

9
1
1

24

10

45

5

6

43

8

59A

8

3

2

17

1

1
6

20

14

20

4

11

9

2

15

6

8

16

2

12

1

7

1
8

1
4

28

19

18

1

39

50

1

11

14

19

1
4
4

2
1 Harbour

2

12

1
3

7

Saya chinta

1

55

3

5
9

63

65

67

61

49

57
67A

73

56

13
60

69

68

77

80

5

1

9

5

3

7

33

LB

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer:  Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2015.

Location Plan      Scale 1:50,000   

Map Scale

OS Map ref

Planning Application

1:2500

SJ 2471

53662

Application Site

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan
Settlement Boundary

Planning Application Site

Legend

ééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééé
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

C
O

E
D

 O
N

N
 R

O
A

D

FLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINTFLINT

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N
B

R
Y

N
 O

N
N

E
N

B
R

Y
N

 O
N

N
E

N

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE

DATE: 20TH APRIL 2016

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT)

SUBJECT: FULL APPLICATION – ERECTION OF JOINERY 
WORKSHOP AT ‘JOINERY YARD’, VALLEY ROAD, 
FFRITH

APPLICATION 
NUMBER: 054266

APPLICANT: MR BRETT JEFFERIES

SITE: ‘JOINERY YARD’, VALLEY ROAD, FFRITH

APPLICATION 
VALID DATE: 7/9/2015

LOCAL MEMBER: COUNCILLOR H.T. ISHERWOOD

TOWN/COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL: LLANFYNYDD COMMUNITY COUNCIL

REASON FOR 
COMMITTEE:

REQUESTED BY THE LOCAL MEMBER DUE TO 
FLOODING CONCERNS

SITE VISIT: YES

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a joinery workshop at 
‘Joinery Yard’, Valley Road, Ffrith. The building replaces one 
damaged by fire and the main issues for consideration are the impact 
on the public footpath, drainage and noise.

2.00 RECOMMENDATION: TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, 
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:-

2.01 Conditions
1. Time limit on commencement
2. In accordance with plans and particulars
3. Hours of operation

Page 73

Agenda Item 6.4



4. Surface water drainage details to be approved prior to 
commencement.

5. Adequate facilities to be provided and retained within the site 
for the loading, unloading, parking and turning of vehicles

3.00 CONSULTATIONS

3.01 Local Member
Councillor H T Isherwood
Requested Planning Committee determination with a site visit due to 
drainage concerns.

Llanfynydd Community Council
No response received at time of writing.

Head of Assets and Transportation
Recommend a condition relating to parking and turning. 

Head of Public Protection
Assessed the noise reports and the insulation etc proposed for the 
new structure. Confirm that there have been no complaints about this 
existing operation. However, in order to keep the potential for noise to 
a minimum would recommend that hours of operation are controlled 
and are limited to what is proposed by them in the application form, 
which are as follows:
1. Hours of operation are limited to:

09.00hrs to 17.00hrs Monday to Friday
No working on Saturdays, Sundays and Bank Holidays

Rights of Way
Public Footpath 14 crosses the site but is unaffected by the 
development. The path must be protected and free from interference 
from the construction.

FCC Engineering (Drainage)
The proposed development shows no increase in hard-standing area 
when compared to the existing site layout. On this basis, there would 
be no increase in run-off rates generated from the proposed 
development when compared to the existing set-up.  A soak-away is 
proposed, which should offer an amount of betterment. However, 
given the nature, scale and details of the proposed development we 
would have no reason to object to the development on the basis of 
increasing surface water flows off site.

Coal Authority
Standing advice is relevant – issue advisory note.

Welsh Water/Dwr Cymru
No comments to make.

Page 74



Natural Resources Wales
No objection.

Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust
There are no archaeological implications for the proposed 
development at this location.

CADW
No comments to make on the proposed development.

4.00 PUBLICITY

4.01 Site Notice and Neighbour Notifications
Objections received from two local residents on the following grounds:

 Disposal of surface water; and
 Visual impact.

5.00 SITE HISTORY

5.01 No planning history.

6.00 PLANNING POLICIES

6.01 Flintshire Unitary Development Plan 
Policy GEN1 – General Requirements for Development
Policy AC18 – Parking Provision and New Development 
Policy EWP13 – Nuisance

7.00 PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.01

7.02

Introduction
Planning permission is sought for the erection of a joinery workshop at 
‘Joinery Yard’, Valley Road, Ffrith.

The proposal is to erect a single storey industrial style building to 
replace an existing building that was destroyed by fire. The proposed 
building is smaller than the old building and measures 18.2 metres by 
17.9 metres. This results in a building of approximately 326 sq. 
metres. The building has a height of 4.8 metres to the eaves and 7.8 
metres to the ridge. The application form and drawings submitted 
state that the building will be clad in green plastisol coated steel 
sheeting with a roller shutter door on the south east elevation.

Page 75



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

Main Issues
The main issues with this application are the impact on the public 
footpath, noise and drainage. Public footpath No. 14 crosses the site 
and as originally submitted, the position of the proposed fence would 
have enclosed some or all of the public footpath. The applicant was 
advised of the situation and asked to relocate the security fence back 
towards the buildings, which amended plans now clearly show. Rights 
of Way Officers were re-consulted and have confirmed that Public 
Footpath 14 crosses the site but is unaffected by the development.

In terms of potential noise, the applicant is currently using the old 
office building on the site as a small workshop with associated 
sawdust extraction system. The existing office building is inadequate 
for their needs because of the lack of space for all their equipment 
and storage of raw materials etc., resulting in this planning application.  
Public Protection Officers are satisfied that the proposed insulated 
structure and layout will prevent noise affecting the amenity of nearby 
residences. The doors are at the North end of the proposed building 
facing away from residential properties and the sawdust extraction 
unit will also be positioned on the North facade and will be enclosed in 
an acoustic enclosure. For these reasons, Public Protection Officers 
consider the proposal to be acceptable and in order to provide further 
reassurance, have recommended that a condition is imposed limiting 
hours of operation.

With regards to drainage there is an existing soakaway within the site, 
which the adjoining landowner considers to be insufficient as he 
considers that water discharges onto his land. Drainage Engineers 
have visited the site and are of the opinion that the proposed 
soakaway shown on the proposed plans should offer some 
betterment. This is difficult to fully assess without further information 
so it is appropriate to impose a condition for full details of the surface 
water drainage to be submitted prior to the commencement of works.

All of these matters have resulted in further consultations with the 
relevant departments who have now received enough information to 
confirm that they are satisfied with the proposed development, subject 
to the imposition of appropriate planning conditions.

Visual amenity
In terms of appearance the proposed building is an industrial style 
building that is appropriate for the application site and will be clad in 
green in order to minimise any possible visual impact. The proposed 
building has a footprint that is considerably smaller than the original 
building and will be built on the existing concrete base.

Page 76



8.00 CONCLUSION

8.01

8.02

The proposal is considered acceptable in principle and detail subject 
to appropriate conditions as recommended above

In considering this planning application the Council has acted in 
accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998 including Article 8 of the 
Convention and in a manner which is necessary in a democratic 
society in furtherance of the legitimate aims of the Act and the 
Convention, and has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under the Equality Act 2010.

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy
Responses to Consultation
Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Lauren Eaton-Jones
Telephone: 01352 703299
Email:                         Lauren_Eaton-Jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



T
rack

(A
fo

n
 C

e
g
id

o
g
)

LIME

R
O

A
D

Works

V
A
LL

E
Y

H
IG

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

C
E

G
ID

O
G

 A
V

E
N

U
E

3

Vale Villas

Bryn Offa

4

Bryn Onnen

Bryntirion

1

2

Alyndale

Springfield

Ashgrove

Glyndwr

Gorffwysfa

Glan Aber

1

Carmel

Villa

2

Croft

1

1

The Glen

Central Court
2

3

2

Terr 1

Stores

Cottages

1

Arosfa

1
1

2

1

5

LB

3

TCB

Dolafon
Bell Mount

Collina

11
15

Oriel

Bridgewater House

Viaduct

Bell

House

Station

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer:  Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2016.

Location Plan      Scale 1:50,000   

Map Scale

OS Map ref

Planning Application

1:1250

SJ 2855

54266

Application Site

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan
Settlement Boundary

Planning Application Site

Legend

ééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééé
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

FFRITH

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE

DATE: 20TH APRIL 2016

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT)

SUBJECT: ERECTION OF 1 NO. DETACHED DWELLING AND 
A DETACHED GARAGE AT LAND TO THE REAR 
OF 37 WOOD LANE HAWARDEN

APPLICATION 
NUMBER: 054899

APPLICANT: MR & MRS SHAW

SITE: LAND TO THE REAR OF 37 WOOD LANE 
HAWARDEN

APPLICATION 
VALID DATE: 08/02/2016

LOCAL MEMBERS: COUNCILLOUR ALSON HALFORD
COUNCILLOUR DAVID MACKIE

TOWN/COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL: HAWARDEN

REASON FOR 
COMMITTEE:              

PREVIOUS APPLICATION FOR IDENTICAL FORM 
OF DEVELOPMENT DETERMINED AT PLANNING 
COMMITTEE

SITE VISIT: NO

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01 This is a full application for the erection a four bedroom house at the 
rear of 37 Wood Lane, Hawarden. The main issues to consider are the 
principle of development, impact on residential amenity, highways and 
the potential coal mining legacy on the site. It is considered that the 
proposed dwelling is in accordance with Policy HSG3 and meets the 
Councils requirements for LPGN 2 Space Around Dwellings. The risks 
in relation to the coal mining legacy on the site can be dealt with by an 
appropriate condition.

Page 81

Agenda Item 6.5



2.00 RECOMMENDATION: TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, 
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:-

2.01 The proposal is recommended for approval subject to the following 
conditions:

Conditions
1. Time limit.
2. In accordance with plans.
3. Foul and surface water shall be drained separately.
4. Surface water connection.
5. Land drainage run-off.
6. Landscaping including boundary treatment.
7. Site investigation and remediation if necessary.
8. Visibility splay from access of 2.4m x 43m in both directions, no 

obstruction above 1.0m
9. Access to the site in accordance with standard detail for single 

residential access
10.The access shall be a minimum width of 4.5m for a distance of 

10m
11.Facilities to be provided and retained within the site for parking 

and turning of vehicles
12.Removal of permitted development rights
13.Finished floor levels to be approved 
14.First Floor Window in  the south-east elevation to be obscure      

glazed  and high level opening

3.00 CONSULTATIONS

3.01 Local Member
Councillor A Halford
Requests committee determination based on the fact that previous 
application for an identical form of development was determined by 
planning committee on the basis of Affordable Housing Need

Council David Mackie
Requests committee determination based on the fact that previous 
application for an identical form of development was determined by 
planning committee on the basis of Affordable Housing Need

Hawarden Community Council
Objects on the grounds that it constitutes backland development

Head of Assets and Transportation
No objection subject to conditions covering;

 Visibility splay from access of 2.4m x 43m in both directions, no 
obstruction above 1.0m.

 Access to the site in accordance with standard detail for single 
residential access.

Page 82



 The access shall be a minimum width of 4.5m for a distance of 
10m.

 Facilities to be provided and retained within the site for parking 
and turning of vehicles.

Head of Public Protection
No adverse comments.

Welsh Water/Dwr Cymru
Standard conditions in relation to foul and surface water drainage.

Airbus
No aerodrome safeguarding objection.

The Coal Authority
The application site falls within the defined development high risk area. 
Within the application site and surrounding area there are coal mining 
features and hazards which need to be considered in relation to this 
application. A Coal Mining Risk Assessment has been submitted with 
the application. Records indicate that the site is likely to have been 
subject to historic unrecorded coal mining at shallow depth. Prior to 
development intrusive investigation works, including gas monitoring, 
are required in order to establish the exact situation regarding ground 
conditions and to enable appropriate remedial measures to be identified 
if necessary. This should be secured by condition.

4.00 PUBLICITY

4.01

4.02

Site Notice and Neighbour Notification
2 letters of objection from the same person on the grounds of;

 Would affect privacy at rear of property and garden
 Light pollution at night from currently dark garden
 Excessive noise from loose surface drive and use of garage
 The proposed development would take up the similar footprint as 

the proposed dwellings previously refused and would not be for 
a local housing need.

 Additional house will increase the volume of traffic on Wood 
Lane and could lead to parking on the road which reduces 
visibility for other properties exiting their properties

 This area of Hawarden is already overdeveloped and does not 
have the facilities to support another dwelling.

 Submitted plans do not accurately show the size of 35 Wood 
Lane, Hawarden. 

 Backland Development

1 letter of support

Page 83



4.03 1 letter of clarification confirming that the occupants of 37 Wood Lane 
do not support the application as stated to the contrary within the 
submitted Design and Access Statement.

5.00 SITE HISTORY

5.01 051234 – Erection of a four bedroom detached dwelling – Refused 
12.03.14 – Appeal Dismissed 27.10.2014

039899 – Erection of 6 no starter homes in two blocks of three.
Refused 12.10.05

038829 – Proposed erection of 7no starter homes in terraced blocks of 
3 and 4 together with construction of an access from existing access 
road. Refused 08.02.05

6.00 PLANNING POLICIES

6.01 Flintshire Unitary Development Plan
STR1 – New Development
STR4 – Housing
STR8 – Built Environment
GEN1 – General Requirements for Development
GEN2 – Development Inside Settlement Boundaries
HSG3 – Housing on Unallocated Sites Within Settlement Boundaries
D1 – Design Quality, Location and Layout
D2 – Design
D3 – Landscaping
AC13 – Access and Traffic impact
AC18 – Parking Provision and New Development

The proposal is in accordance with the above development plan 
policies.

7.00 PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.01

7.02

Introduction
This is a full application for the erection a four bedroom house at the 
rear of 37 Wood Lane, Hawarden.

This application is for a similar form of development to application 
reference no. 051234 which was considered by the Planning and 
Development Control Committee on the 11th December 2013 and the 
15th of January 2014. The Committee resolved to grant planning 
permission on the 15th January 2014 subject to the applicant 
completing a S106 agreement requiring that;

 The property shall be occupied by the applicants Mr. & Mrs 
Shaw in the first instance

Page 84



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

 If the property is put up for sale in the future 30% of the property 
value is repaid to the Council, secured as a charge on the 
property.

Following the Committee’s resolution the applicants Mr and Mrs Shaw 
informed the Council they were not willing to sign the S106 agreement 
as the project was unviable. The application was subsequently  refused 
on 12th March 2014 under the Head of Planning’s delegated powers on 
the grounds that;

“Ewloe is a Category B settlement and the development would lead to 
cumulatively more than 15% growth since 2000. Any development 
therefore needs to be justified on the grounds of housing need. The 
applicant is not willing to sign the legal agreement in order to ensure 
that the dwelling meets this need therefore the application is contrary to 
policy HSG3 of the Adopted Flintshire Unitary Development Plan.”

An appeal was held by way of an Informal Hearing and was 
DISMISSED on the 27th October 2014.

This application is a resubmission of reference no. 051234 on the 
bases that the sole reason for refusal under HSG3 is considered to be 
no longer applicable. The plans are identical to the previous 
submission. 

Site Description
The application site is to the rear garden of 37 Wood Lane Hawarden 
which is within the settlement boundary of Ewloe. The site is 
surrounded by the dwelling and remaining rear garden of 37 Wood 
Lane to the west, an electricity substation to the south west, the 
community centre to the south east and 35 Wood Lane to the north.  An 
area of land between the application site and the community centre is 
owned by Scottish Power and is currently leased by the applicant for 
use as additional garden. The site boundaries are mature garden 
hedges, fencing and walling of varying heights. 

Proposal
The proposed dwelling is sited to the rear of the existing dwelling and 
would share an access. The dwelling is a two storey four bedrooms 
detached property with a separate double garage. The proposed 
materials are brick and tile to match existing properties in the area. The 
dwelling would have a private garden space to its rear.

Issues
The main issues to consider are the principle of development, backland 
development, and impact on residential amenity, highways and the 
potential coal mining history of the site.

Page 85



7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

Principle of Development 
The application site lies within the settlement boundary of Ewloe which 
is a category B settlement within the Adopted Flintshire Unitary 
Development Plan. Within such settlements growth was previously 
controlled by Policy HSG3 ‘Housing on Unallocated Sites within 
Settlement Boundaries’. As Ewloe had a growth rate level of 17.5% 
since 2000 criterion B of HSG3 would have applied. Specifically 
criterion B states:

’On unallocated sites within settlement boundaries, new housing, the 
change of use of non-residential buildings to dwellings, the renovation 
or replacement of existing dwellings, and infill development will be 
permitted provided that:
b. in category B settlements it is the renovation or replacement of an 
existing dwelling or where it would cumulatively result in more than 15% 
growth since 2000 the development is justified on the grounds of 
housing need,’

However as Members will be aware monitoring and controlling growth 
over the Unitary Development Plan period in category B and C 
settlements ended on 1st April 2015. This is the operational date where 
monitoring against growth bands effectively ceased.

In account of this fact criterion B in Policy HSG3 is no longer applicable 
and the development does not have to be justified solely on the 
grounds of local housing need. In category B settlements new proposal’ 
should now be considered on their own merits in terms of whether they 
represent sustainable development against all relevant policies within 
the Plan. 

Backland Development
Although the development is a form of backland development, this does 
not automatically mean such a form of development should be refused. 
The important issue to consider is the harm this form of development 
may cause in terms of impacts on residential amenity to the occupiers 
of 37 Wood Lane, the proposed dwelling and adjoining properties and 
also the impact on the development on the character and appearance 
of the area.

The main impacts in terms of residential amenity would be from 
increased vehicle movements to the occupiers of 37 Wood Lane when 
in the existing conservatory. This would be minimised by the 
introduction of a boundary treatment to reduce any impact on privacy 
The new dwelling has been orientated so there is no direct overlooking 
with 37 Wood Lane or any adjacent properties. The only potential for 
overlooking is to the rear garden of 35 Wood Lane, however 
overlooking into gardens is common in urban areas and is not dealt 
with in Local Planning Guidance Note 2: Space Around Dwellings.

Page 86



7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

Any impact in this regard can be dealt with by retention of the existing 
boundary hedgerow and other suitable boundary treatment which can 
be dealt with by condition.

In terms of the scale and form of the development, there is an existing 
garage in rear of 37 Wood Lane which would be demolished. The 
garden of 37 Wood Lane is large enough to accommodate the 
proposed dwelling, garage, parking and turning along with providing 
adequate remaining private amenity space for 37 Wood Lane. Mr &  
Mrs Shaw lease an additional area of land from the Electricity Company 
which also provides additional garden space and acts as a buffer 
between the adjacent residential property of April House which is 
accessed off Level Road.

There are varying forms of development in this area. While it is a 
predominately residential area of detached and semi-detached 
properties, the application site is adjacent to a large electricity 
substation to the west and the Community Centre to the south. The 
application site is accessed from Wood Lane, which is a typical 
residential street, there are also houses to the rear of 31, 33 and 35 
these accessed from Level Road. On the opposite side of the Wood 
Lane there is the development of The Hedgerows which sits directly 
behind the houses on Wood Lane. It is considered that the introduction 
of another dwelling would therefore not be at odds with the pattern 
development in the locality

Impact on residential amenity
The impacts of the proposed dwelling need to be considered in relation 
to the impact on the residential amenity of the existing occupiers of 37 
Wood Lane along with the impact on neighbouring properties and on 
the proposed new dwelling.

The existing and proposed dwelling would share the same vehicle 
access. The existing dwelling would have parking at the front and the 
proposed dwelling would have a double garage. There is therefore a 
potential impact on residential amenity to 37 Wood Lane form the 
vehicle access to the new dwelling. The shared access would pass the 
existing conservatory on 37 Wood Lane. A condition requiring boundary 
treatments to be approved will protect residential amenity from vehicle 
movements from the new dwelling on the occupiers of 37 Wood Lane.

The proposed dwelling is orientated so its principal elevations face 
south west towards the electricity substation and north east facing the 
rear garden of 35 Wood Lane. The proposed dwelling is sited 7 metres 
from the boundary with 35 Wood Lane but is sited adjacent to the rear 
garden of 35 Wood Lane. There is 18 metres from the corner of the 
proposed dwelling and the 35 Wood Lane and 20 metres from the rear 
elevation of 37 Wood Lane and the side elevation of the proposed 
dwelling. Due to its location and orientation there would be no direct 
overlooking into the habitable rooms of either 35 or 37 Wood

Page 87



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

Lane and there are no habitable rooms at first floor on the side 
elevation which would face 37 Wood Lane. It is considered that the 
siting of the dwelling is in accordance with the separation distances set 
out in Local Planning Guidance Note 2: Space Around Dwellings.

The existing dwelling and proposed dwelling would both have more 
than 70m2 private garden space. Both these areas are considered 
suitable to meet the requirements of private amenity space as set out in 
Local Planning Guidance Note 2: Space Around Dwellings.

Access and Parking
The proposal would use the existing access to 37 Wood Lane which 
would be shared between the existing and proposed properties. An 
objection has been raised in relation to the increase in traffic 
movements associated with the new dwelling and the potential to an 
increase in parking on the highway.

The Head of Assets and Transportation has no objection to the 
proposed access and parking arrangements subject to conditions 
relating to the access and visibility splay and parking provision. The 
addition of one dwelling would not lead to a significant increase in traffic 
movements and adequate parking provision is provided for the new 
dwelling.

Coal Mining
The Coal Authority identified that the site falls within the defined 
Development high Risk Area. Coal Authority records indicate that within 
the application site and surrounding area there are coal mining features 
and hazards which need to be considered in relation to the 
determination of this planning application. It is a requirement of 
Planning policy Wales paragraph 13.9 that the applicant demonstrate to 
the satisfaction of the site is safe, stable and suitable for development.

The applicant has undertaken a Coal Mining Risk Assessment. This 
concludes that the site is likely to have been subject to historic 
unrecorded coal mining at shallow depth. The Coal Authority and the 
Head of Public Protection advise that prior to development intrusive 
investigation works, including gas monitoring, are required in order to 
establish the exact situation regarding ground conditions and to enable 
appropriate remedial measures to be identified if necessary.  This can 
be secured by condition.

8.00 CONCLUSION

8.01 It is considered that the proposed dwelling is in accordance with the 
relevant planning policies. It is considered that the siting of the dwelling 
meets the Councils requirements for Space Around Dwellings and 
would not have an adverse impact on the residential amenity of 
adjoining occupiers. The risks in relation to the coal mining legacy on 
the site can be dealt with by an appropriate condition.

Page 88



8.02 In considering this planning application the Council has acted in 
accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998 including Article 8 of the 
Convention and in a manner which is necessary in a democratic society 
in furtherance of the legitimate aims of the Act and the Convention, and 
has had due regard to its public sector equality duty under the Equality 
Act 2010.

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy
Responses to Consultation
Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Daniel McVey
Telephone: (01352) 703266
Email: daniel.mcvey@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



L
E

V
E

L
 R

O
A

D

WOOD LANE

Sinks

Issues

M
A

N
S

F
IE

L
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

W
ELLIN

G
TO

N
 C

LO
SE

Path
 (u

m
)

THE H
EDG

ERO
W

S

44

29

48

40

Melrose

1

Holbourne

Lorelei

13

Moorside

Park View

15

31

56

64

37

74

75

63

61

65

67

69
71

73

77

31a

2

9

4

4

2

3

2

1

1

1

S
ha

n-
La

o

4

10

1

Centre
Tank

Community

5

93

2

19

20

91

89
95

El Sub Sta

118

124

116

112
114

108
110 102 104106

122
120

126

87

134

132 128
130

85

27

17

19

78

82

51

59

57

33

41 43

49

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer:  Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2016.

Location Plan      Scale 1:50,000   

Map Scale

OS Map ref

Planning Application

1:1250

SJ 2966

54899

Application Site

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan
Settlement Boundary

Planning Application Site

Legend

ééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééé
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

HAWARDEN

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE

DATE: 20TH APRIL 2016

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT)

SUBJECT: FULL APPLICATION – DEVELOPMENT OF 
EXTERNAL INFRASTUCTURE COMPRISING AIR 
SUPPLY UNITS, DUCT WORK, STACKS & 
SUPPORTING STEEL WORK & ASSOCIATED 
ROADWAYS & LANDSCAPING TO SUPPORT THE 
OPERATION OF 2 NO. BOOTHS WITHIN THE 
PAINT SHOP BUILDING AT CHESTER ROAD, 
BROUGHTON 

APPLICATION 
NUMBER:

055021

APPLICANT: AIRBUS OPERATION LTD

SITE: AIRBUS OPERATIONS LTD, CHESTER ROAD, 
BROUGHTON, FLINTSHIRE, CH4 0DR

APPLICATION 
VALID DATE:

24TH FEBRUARY 2016

LOCAL MEMBERS: COUNCILLOR W. MULLIN

TOWN/COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL:

BROUGHTON & BRETTON COMMUNITY COUNCIL

REASON FOR 
COMMITTEE:

HEIGHT OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

SITE VISIT: NONE REQUESTED

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01 This full application relates to the provision of external infrastructure 
air supply units, ductwork, and associated roadways and landscaping 
to support 2 booths within the paint shop building, at Airbus 
Operations Ltd, Chester Road, Broughton.

Page 93

Agenda Item 6.6



2.00 RECOMMENDATION: TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, 
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:-

2.01 1. Time limit 
2. As per the approved plan
3. Noise levels 
4. Noise levels emitted from mechanical and electrical plant
5. Noise levels nearby sensitive premises

3.00 CONSULTATIONS

3.01 Local Member 
Councillor W Mullins
No response at time of writing.

Broughton and Bretton Community Council
No objections.

Head of Public Protection
Application is located in a position which is unlikely to cause a noise 
disturbance to nearby residents. Would advise that conditions are 
attached to any permission granted to safeguard the local amenity 
and have been historically attached to the site when the original 
application for the paint shop building was granted.

Natural Resources Wales
Do not have any comments to make on the proposed development.

Airbus Operations Ltd.
No aerodrome safeguarding objection to the proposal.

4.00 PUBLICITY

4.01 Site Notice
No response at time of writing.

5.00 SITE HISTORY

5.01 053219
Full Application for the erection of a radar mast and associated 
development.

052843
Erection of ground support equipment shelter – Approved 19th 

December 2015.

051621
Relocation of the existing fuel farm- approved 18th February 2015. 

051469

Page 94



Construction of a new catering facility- approved 7th January 2014.

6.00 PLANNING POLICIES

6.01 Flintshire Unitary Development Plan 
GEN1 - General Requirements.
D1 - Design Quality, Location & Layout.
D2 – Design.
EMP3 - Development Zones & Principal Employment Areas.
EWP12 - Pollution
STR8 - Built Environment

7.00

7.01

PLANNING APPRAISAL

Main Planning Considerations
It is considered that the main planning issues in relation to this 
application are as follows:-

a. Principle of development having regard to the site in question 
and its surroundings.

b. Proposed scale of development and impact on the character of 
the site and its surroundings.

7.02

7.03

7.04

The Proposed Development
Airbus at present uses four paint booths within the existing paint shop 
building at the Airbus Broughton site. These booths are associated 
with the preparation and painting of the aircraft wings constructed on 
the site prior to transhipment to another factory ready for assembly on 
the final aircraft. However, due to increase in production capacity, 
Airbus Operations Ltd are now proposing to install two additional 
booths within the building.

To allow for operational expansion, the paint shop building was 
designed to offer accommodation for additional booths without the 
need to amend the external appearance.

To support the operation of the new booths it will be necessary to 
construct external infrastructure (e.g. air circulation systems), 
alongside the north-western elevation of the building. This 
infrastructure given the height would not benefit from permitted 
development rights and as a result requires planning permission due 
to this aspect, notwithstanding other buildings within the complex 
being higher again.

Page 95



7.05 In summary, the external infrastructure proposed consists of the 
following:-

A. ‘spraying booth’ air supply unit, associated circulation ductwork 
and exhaust stack.

B. ‘preparation booth’ air supply unit, associated circulation ductwork 
and exhaust stack.

C. external steelwork to support the ductwork and exhaust stacks 
proposed.

D. minor reconfiguration of maintenance roadways and landscaping 
to allow for the placement of the external infrastructure

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

Site & Its Surroundings
Airbus Broughton site is located to the north of the A5104 Chester 
Road and the settlements of Broughton and Bretton. The proposed 
site is located next to the main ‘east’ factory and other buildings which 
includes the Beluga building recently constructed. The building itself is 
centrally located within the Broughton site, away from residential 
properties.

The external infrastructure which forms the content of this application 
is located immediately next to the north-western elevation of the 
existing paint shop building. This land currently comprises of hard 
standing and mown grass, which essentially forms a small island due 
to the nearby internal roadways serving the site.

Paint Shop Building
The paint shop building is constructed from a double span steel portal 
frame. The northern span is 74m long by 25m wide and its southern 
span is 68m long by 26m wide. In addition, an interconnected smaller 
building is 15m wide by 34m long extends from its south-western 
elevation. The elevations consist of brick walls, to a height of 2m, with 
metal profiled cladding above. The building extends to a height of 
between 15m to 16m.

As noted, four booths associated with the painting and sealing of 
aircraft wings are currently being used, and it is proposed to install two 
additional booths (spraying and preparation) within the building. Due 
to the nature of the building and the use of the overall site the new 
paint booths, do not require formal consent.

It will be necessary to construct supporting infrastructure (e.g. two air 
circulation systems) immediately next to the north-western elevation of 
the building and it is this element or part of this project which requires 
consent. The combination spraying booth air supply unit is proposed 
to be constructed next to the north-western elevation of the paint shop 

Page 96



7.11

7.12

7.13

building. The unit would be 12.5m long x circa 5.3m wide x circa 5.5m 
high It would comprise of a prefabricated structure which includes a 
series of personnel doors and intake grills, all finished in grey. The 
ductwork and stack would also be finished in grey and where it passes 
through the building’s envelope any gap would be finished in the 
appropriate matching colour. It is the ductwork/stack which require 
consent being over 15metres high.

The stack extends to a height of 20.5m (1.8m wide) and include 
emissions testing point. The existing paint shop building is 15m to 
eaves 16m to ridge, therefore only a small section of the stack would 
protrude above the height of the building.

Policy Context
The application site forms part of an existing employment area which 
is allocated through Policy EM3 ‘Development Zones and Principal 
Employment Areas’. The policy identifies that within these areas 
employment development will be permitted subject to specific 
controls. Policy EM3 identifies three development zones, in the case 
of the application site which forms an: ‘Airport Development Zone’ 
which is of particular interest stating : “This is another area of existing 
employment uses and industrial estates and which also encompasses 
the Hawarden Airfield and the aerospace industry. Given the existing 
focus of employment, the expansion of Airbus and the growing 
potential for spin off developments from the aerospace sector, the 
area has a strategic function in the context of the County’s 
economy…”

In terms of Policy EWP12 ‘Pollution’ the proposal would not create an 
additional risk of pollution or hazard either at the site or on the 
surrounding environment. The pollution control measures including 
filtration systems contained within the air supply units, noise 
attenuation features (silenced fans and lagged ductwork) mean that 
the proposal would not create a pollution risk.  Therefore the proposal 
is also considered to accord with this policy and Policy EWP13 
‘Nuisance’. Environment Health have been consulted on the 
application and request conditions that were imposed on the original 
building are placed on this application relating to noise levels

8.00

8.01

CONCLUSION

The scale of the proposed development is dictated by its intended 
function as new paint shop facilities and associated space. It is the 
ductwork/stack which requires consent being over 15 metres high. 
The stacks and associated development is to be located within the 
Airbus site, a location which is characterised by large manufacturing 
/industrial buildings. Given the scale of the existing buildings on site, 
and the fact that the infrastructure/stacks will be of a similar height to 
existing buildings, the scale of the development is considered to be 
appropriate to its location and to its intended function

Page 97



8.02 In considering this planning application the Council has acted in 
accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998 including Article 8 of the 
Convention and in a manner which is necessary in a democratic 
society in furtherance of the legitimate aims of the Act and the 
Convention, and has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under the Equality Act 2010.

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy
Responses to Consultation
Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Karl C. Slater
Telephone: (01352) 703259
Email: karl.slater@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 98



Pond

A 5104

Builders Yard

Pond

Ground

Sports

WB

Em
er

ge
nc

y A
ss

ist
an

ce
 P

oi
nt

Emergency Assistance Point

Springfield Farm

Sub

Gas Govs

El

Sta

Factory

Tanks

Tanks

Fire Station

Electricity Sub Station

1
2

Glynne

El Sub Sta

Cottage

Airport
Hawarden

White House

Tank

The

Tanks

Glynne

Arms

(PH)

El Sub Sta

Silo

FB

FB

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer:  Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2016.

Location Plan      Scale 1:50,000   

Map Scale

OS Map ref

Planning Application

1:5000

SJ 3464

55021

Application Site

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan
Settlement Boundary

Planning Application Site

Legend

ééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééé
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

BROUGHTON

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE

DATE: WEDNESDAY, 20 APRIL 2016

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT)

SUBJECT: 054536 - GENERAL MATTERS - APPLICATION FOR 
THE VARIATION OF CONDITION NO. 10 
(EXTENSION TO WORKING HOURS) & CONDITION 
NO. 26 (INCREASE HEIGHT OF STOCKPILES) 
ATTACHED TO PLANNING PERMISSION 052359 AT 
FLINTSHIRE WASTE MANAGEMENT, EWLOE 
BARNS INDUSTRIAL

1.00 APPLICATION NUMBER

1.01 054536

2.00 APPLICANT

2.01 Thorncliffe Building Supplies Ltd

3.00 SITE

3.01 Flintshire Waste management, Ewloe Barns Industrial Estate, 
Mold Road, Ewloe

4.00 APPLICATION VALID DATE

4.01 03/11/2015

5.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

5.01 To clarify the reasons for refusal of planning application 054536 
following resolution for refusal of planning permission at the Planning 
and Development Control Committee meeting on 23rd March 2016.

6.00 REPORT

6.01 A resolution was made to refuse application 054536, which sought to 
vary condition 10 to extend the working hours at the site from 0700-
1800 Monday to Saturday to 0600 -1900 Monday to Saturday and on 
a Sunday between 1000 and 1700 over a period of 6 months. 

Page 101

Agenda Item 6.7



6.02

6.03

The site manages a variety of different wastes, including household, 
commercial and non-hazardous industrial wastes. Concerns were 
expressed by Members of the Planning Committee that noise arising 
from the site would have an unacceptable impact on nearby residents. 

It is proposed that the following wording be used on the decision 
notice for application 054536:

“The proposed increase in working hours would result in 
unacceptable noise and disturbance on residential 
amenity, contrary to policies GEN 1 (d), EWP 8 (b) and (f) 
and EWP13 of the adopted Flintshire Unitary Development 
Plan.” 

7.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

7.01  That the Planning and Development Control Committee approves the 
reason for refusal given above for application 054536.

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy
Responses to Consultation
Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Martha Savage
Telephone: 01352 703298
Email: Martha_savage@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 102



Issues

S
M

IT
H

Y
 L

A
N

E

P
a
th

 (
u

m
)

Issues

Issues

A 494

M
AG

AZIN
E LAN

E

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

D
is

m
a
n
tle

d
 R

a
ilw

a
y

Ewloe Barns Industrial Estate

D
ra

in

Pond

Pond
Waste Disposal Facility

Drain
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay
D

is
m

a n
t le d

 R
a il w

ay

D
is

m
a n

t le d
 R

a il w
ay

MOLD ROAD

Issues

Pond

P
IN

F
O

LD
 LA

N
E

Issues

Pond

P
IN

F
O

L
D

 L
A

N
E

Shaft

Pond

Posts

Conveyor

(disused)

T
ra

c
k

Pond

WB

Workings (dis)

Shaft

(disused)

Issues

Pottery

L Twr

Cottages

Ashdene

1

5

Cottages

1

5
3

6

Parry's

Hotel

Oaks

Oaks

Tank

Farm

Cottage

El Sub Sta

Tanks

Offices

Depot

Tank

Mast

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer:  Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2015.

Location Plan      Scale 1:50,000   

Map Scale

OS Map ref

Planning Application

1:5000

SJ 2766

54536

Application Site

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan
Settlement Boundary

Planning Application Site

Legend

ééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééééé
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A
55

A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD

A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD
A494     MOLD ROAD

DepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepotDepot

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6.1 054607 - A - Full Application - Erection of 33 No. Apartments with Associated Car Parking at Albion Social Club, Pen y Llan, Connah's Quay
	Enc. 1 for 054607 - Full Application - Erection of 33 No. Apartments with Associated Car Parking at Albion Social Club, Pen y Llan, Connah's Quay

	6.2 054886 - A - Change of Use of Vacant Police House (Formerly a Dwelling) into a 9 Bedroom HMO and Associated Access Improvements at 63 High Street, Saltney
	Enc. 1 for 054886 - Change of Use of Vacant Police House (Formerly a Dwelling) into a 9 Bedroom HMO and Associated Access Improvements at 63 High Street, Saltney

	6.3 053662 - A - Full Application - Erection of 14 No. Semi-Detached Houses, 2 No. Semi-Detached Bungalows, 6 Terraced Properties and 1 No. Special Needs Bungalow Together with Access Road and Parking at Land Off Coed Onn Road, Flint.
	Enc. 1 for 053662 - Full Application - Erection of 14 No. Semi-Detached Houses, 2 No. Semi-Detached Bungalows, 6 Terraced Properties and 1 No. Special Needs Bungalow Together with Access Road and Parking at Land Off Coed Onn Road, Flint.

	6.4 054266 - A - Full Application - Erection of Joinery Workshop at Joinery Yard, Valley Road, Ffrith
	Enc. 1 for 054266 - Full Application - Erection of Joinery Workshop at Joinery Yard, Valley Road, Ffrith

	6.5 054899 - A - Full Application - Erection of 1 No. Detached Dwelling and a Detached Double Garage at 37 Wood Lane, Hawarden.
	Enc. 1 for 054899 - Full Application - Erection of 1 No. Detached Dwelling and a Detached Double Garage at 37 Wood Lane, Hawarden.

	6.6 055021 - A - Full Application - Development of External Infrastructure Comprising Air Supply Units, Duct Work, Stacks & Supporting Steel Work & Associated Roadways & Landscaping to Support the Operation of 2 No. Booths within the Paint Shop Building at Chester Road, Broughton
	Enc. 1 for 055021 - Full Application - Development of External Infrastructure Comprising Air Supply Units, Duct Work, Stacks & Supporting Steel Work & Associated Roadways & Landscaping to Support the Operation of 2 No. Booths within the Paint Shop Bu

	6.7 054536 - General Matters - Application for the Variation of Condition No. 10 (Extension to Working Hours) & Condition No. 26 (Increase Height of Stockpiles) Attached to Planning Permission 052359 at Flintshire Waste Management, Ewloe Barns Industrial Estate, Mold Road, Ewloe.
	Enc. 1 for 054536 - General Matters - Application for the Variation of Condition No. 10 (Extension to Working Hours) & Condition No. 26 (Increase Height of Stockpiles) Attached to Planning Permission 052359 at Flintshire Waste Management, Ewloe Barns


